MAX

BOARD’S REPORT > ESTATES

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the Sixth Annual Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 (“‘FY
20227,

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial and Operational Performance
The Standalone financial performance of your Company for FY 2022 is summarized below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

i
Income - -
Revenue from Operations 3901.22 1,872.19
Other Income - o 1046.49 1070.99
Total Revenues 4947.71 2,943.18
_Expenses ]
Cost of construction materials, labour & other project cost - -
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 1850.95 1,557.96
Employee benefits expense _ 598.73 | 501.75
Finance costs _ - 725.88 1,156.56
Depreciation and amortization expense - 144.47 66.01 |
| Other Expenses 1101.22 876.54
Total Expenses - 4421.25|  4,158.82
' Net Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax _ 526.46 (1,215.64)

Tax expenses _
Current tax _ _ - -
Less: MAT credit entitiement - - |
Deferred tax ] - ~0.07

Total tax expense - 0.07

| Net Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 526.46 | (1,215.71)

Other Comprehensive Income ) 3.93 (9.79)
| Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of tax 530.39 (1,225.50)

EPS _ 0.67 (1.56)
Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company do not recommend any dividend on the Equity Share
Capital of the Company as there were no profits during FY 2022.
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Transfer to Reserves

Since there were no profits during FY 2022, the Company has not transferred any amount to the
General Reserve.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Operational Performance of Company and its subsidiary

During FY 2022, the company announced its intention to foray into the residential business — a
strategic move after firmly establishing our feet in Commercial Real Estate (CRE) thereby
cementing the legacy of the Max Group.

Currently, Max Estates includes three completed projects —two commercial Max Towers & Max
House Phase-I and one boutique residential project in Dehradun. In addition, the Company also
started the construction of the Phase 2 of the Max House development. Max House — Phase 1 is
100% leased and Max Towers is 98% leased. Our construction of our upcoming project in Noida
Max Square, is on track for completion by Q4 FY23.

Over the last few years, the Company has demonstrated end to end expertise across the real
estate value chain including sourcing new opportunities, liasioning, project execution, asset
management and operations. The Company’s commercial and residential portfolio is targeted
towards expanding at an average of approximately 1 million sq ft each per year for the next five
years. A brief about our projects is given here:

e 222 Rajpur, Dehradun: A gated community with ready to move in uniquely designed luxury
villas abutting the Malsi reserve forest, and oriented to panoramic views of Mussoorie hills.
By end of FY 22, the Company has been able to sell 21 out of 22 Villas in its Dehradun project
(222 Rajpur). Despite market slow down due to COVID, we have received a very strong
traction for the 222 Rajpur Villas — a testimony of not only excellent product quality but also
a holistic ‘LiviWell experience we have been able to curate for its residents.

e Max Towers, Noida: A highly awarded LEED Platinum commercial office development (~0.6
mn sq. ft.) strategically located at the entrance of Noida, directly on DND flyway and minutes
away from the sector 16 metro station. At Max Towers, by the end of FY22 we have been
able to achieve 98%+ occupancy while commanding 25-30% rental premium over other
developments in the micro-market. It has attracted an enviable tenant profile primarily from
the central business districts of New Delhi and in turn has redefined the commercial real
estate landscape of Noida in terms of product quality, tenant profile and rental realisation.

e Max House, New Delhi: A LEED Gold office development (~0.3 mn sq. ft.) located within
walking distance from Okhla NSIC metro station in the heart of New Delhi. Phase 1 is
operational and 100% leased. It has been leased to marquee clients like Nykaa Fashion,
Samsung India Electronics, Religare Enterprises, DSK Legal, Dhampur Sugar Mills and
Target Sourcing Services. Despite COVID led uncertainty, team has been able to command
a 25-30% premium to the prevalent rental in its micro-market. Phase 2 of the development
is under construction and is scheduled to be operational by Q2 FY24. Max House won several
awards including ‘Design Project of the year and ‘Commercial Project of the Year by Realty
Conclave Excellence Awards’20;” Environment Friendly Project of the year — Commercial’ by
13" Annual Estate Award'21; ‘Excellence in Built Environment by Indian Buildings
Congress’21 and ‘Most Sustainable Architecture Design’ by RE/Max India Estates
Awards’20.




e Max Square, Noida: This will be a IGBC Platinum certified commercial office development
(~0.7 mn sq. ft.) located right on Noida Expressway (Sector 129). We have received all the
necessary statutory approvals and the construction is going as per schedule and is now
expected to be delivered by Q3 FY 2023 - overall within the budgeted time and costs due to
cross functional efforts from Design, Planning, Procurement and Projects team on the ground
supported by our partners across all aspects of the developments. The New York Life
Insurance Company has partnered with the Company for the development of Max Square
and holds a 49% equity stake.

2021 was a watershed moment for India’s RE sector as the sector continued to show resilience
and steady rise in demand for office and residential spaces despite the exigencies originating
from the pandemic.

In Delhi-NCR commercial office space is in recovery mode with pent-up demand for office spaces
coming from different sectors. This is evident from the strong traction witnessed by Grade A+
developer-owned and developer-managed office spaces like the ones from Max Estates, which
has further accelerated the impetus on ‘Flight to Quality’.

As far as residential real estate is concerned, the COVID-19 pandemic turned into a strong factor
by supporting housing demand. Over the last couple of years, the residential sector has
undergone structural reforms that have improved transparency and access to quality information
and led to consolidation in the industry.

Last year marked a strategic shift in the Company’s RE strategy, while the company continues to
focus on expanding the commercial office-footprint and building a portfolio of annuity-yielding
assets, we also began exploring a foray into the residential segment in Delhi-NCR in line with our
mission — One region, multiple asset classes.

The decision to enter the Residential asset class is based on several positive factors, including
but not limited to all-time high affordability, low-mortgage rates (under pressure in the recent
months), fiscal incentives, changing consumer preferences, flight to credible corporate
developers who can execute and deliver projects on time with an ecosystem of promised
amenities, among others. Besides, we also intend to leverage the group’s brand equity, its
strength in terms of landbank, partners, and network for a successful foray. Within residential, we
intend to focus on mid-to-high-end income segments providing a ‘LiviVell experience to positively
impact the lives of our residents.

We are confident to make Max Estates one of the leading multi-asset class RE developers in
Delhi-NCR — a market that has a huge vacuum of credible and reputed developers despite its
mammoth size.

SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2022 stood at Rs. 78,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Seventy Eight Crores Only) comprising of 7,80,00,000 (Seven Crores Eighty Lakh)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.



The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2022 stood at Rs. 77,91,00,000
(Rupees Seventy Seven Crores Ninety One Lakhs Only) comprising of 7,79,10,000 (Seven
Crores Seventy Nine Lakh Ten Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

There were no changes in the authorized, issued and paid up share capital of the Company during
FY 2022.

MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF
THIS REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company i.e. March 31,.2022
and the date of this Board's Report.

HOLDING COMPANY/ SUBSIDIARY COMPANY / ASSOCIATE/ JOINT VENTURE

Your Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Max Ventures and Industries Limited as at March
31, 2022. Further, following are the subsidiaries of your Company as at March 31, 2022:

1.  Max Towers Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company

2. Max Square Limited, subsidiary company

3.- Pharmax Corporation Limited, subsidiary company

The Company did not have any associate or joint venture during FY 2022.

Form AOC-1 containing the salient features of Financial .Statements of the Company’s
subsidiaries, is attached as ‘Annexure — 1°.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as at March 31, 2022, is as follows:

|1 [ Mr. Kishansingh Ramsinghaney Director
2 Mr. Rishi Raj Whole Time Director
3 Mr. Bishwajit Das | Director

In terms of Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Section 152
of the Act, Mr. Rishi Raj being longest in the office, shall be liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing AGM. The Board of Director recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of
Members at the ensuring AGM. Brief profile of Mr. Rishi Raj forms part of the Notice convening
AGM of the Company.

Statement of declaration by Independent Directors

During FY 2022, the Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section
149(4) of the Act and Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and hence no such declaration is required.

Board Meetings



The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on policy and strategy apart from
other business discussions. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board's
approval is taken by passing resolution(s) through circulation, as permitted by law, which is
confirmed in the subsequent Board Meeting.

The Board met 6 (Six) times during FY 2022, details of which are as follows:

June 10, 2021
August 13, 2021
November 12, 2021
January 21, 2022
February 02, 2022
March 28, 2022

oo swln|-
w|w|w|w|w|w|=
WWWWwWwww

The attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid meetings is as follows:

oard Veetings

Mr. Kishansingh Ramsinghaney Director T 6.\. R 6 B
Mr. Bishwaijit Das  Director 6 6
Mr. Rishi Raj - Whole Time Director 6 6 |

Key Managerial Personnel
As at March 31, 2022, following are the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company:

1. Mr. Rishi Raj, Whole Time Director
2. Mr. Nitin Kumar, Chief Financial Officer

During FY 2022, Mr. Saket Gupta resigned from the position of Company Secretary of the
Company effective January 31, 2022.

Committees of Board of Directors

During FY 2022, the Company was not required to constitute any committee of Board of Directors
in terms of provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

Annual Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, performance evaluation has been done
in the Board Meeting of the Company held on June 10, 2021 wherein the performance of the
Board as a whole and Individual Directors were discussed and evaluated. The key areas on which
evaluation was done were attendance, contribution to deliberations, effective deployment of
knowledge and expertise, providing inputs to the management, taking care of the stakeholder
interests, the working of the Board. Overall, the performance of Board as a whole and Individual
Directors after taking into consideration the suggestion of the members of the Board, was found
satisfactory.



PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During FY 2022, your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits from the public in
terms of Section 73 to 76 of the Act read with the relevant rules made there under.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments made under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Act have been disclosed in Note No. 34 of the notes to the Financial Statements forming
integral part of the Annual Report.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Further, your Company has not entered
into any Related Party Transaction which may be considered material and thus disclosure in Form
AOC-2 is considered to be not applicable to the Company.

The details of all related party transactions forms part of notes to the financial statements attached
to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION &
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
& outgo as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is as follows:

A. Conservation of Energy

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

Regular efforts are made to conserve the energy through various means such as use of low
energy consuming lightings, etc.

ii. the steps taken by the Company for using alternate sources of energy

Since your Company is not an energy intensive unit, utilization of alternate source of energy
may not be feasible.

ii. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil
B. Technology Absorption

Your Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities therefore, there is no specific
information to be furnished in this regard.

There was no expenditure on Research and Development during the year under review.
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given below:



Total Foreign Exchange earned r Nil

Total Foreign Exchange outgo ; INR 5.93 Lakh

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors & Auditors’ Report

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the Act, M/s. KK
Mankeshwar & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN — 106009W) were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at first AGM held on September 26, 2017 to hold office till the conclusion
of the ensuing sixth AGM of the Company to be held this year.

In view of the above, it is proposed to re-appoint M/s. K.K Mankeshwar & Co., Chartered
Accountants (FRN — 106009W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years
commencing from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the 11" AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027. The Company has received a certificate from M/s. KK
Mankeshwar & Co., Chartered Accountants to the effect that they are eligible for appointment as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for FY 2022 is self-explanatory
and requires no further comments. Further, there are no adverse remarks or qualification in the
report that call for Board’s explanation. During the year under review, there were no frauds
reported by Auditors under Section 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors has appointed M/s.
Raghav Bansal & Associates, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of your
Company. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor has been annexed as ‘Annexure - 2’ to this
Report.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers given by the Secretarial
Auditors in their Report for the year under review and hence, does not call for any further
comments.

Internal Auditors

During FY 2022, M/s. MGC Global Risk Advisory LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as
Internal Auditors of the Company.

COST RECORDS

During FY 2022, the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act relating to maintenance of cost records
were not applicable to the Company.



INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses
in the design or operation were observed.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Your Company considers that risk is an integral part of its business and therefore, it takes proper
steps to manage all risks in a proactive and efficient manner. The Company management
periodically assesses risks in the internal and external environment and incorporates suitable risk
treatment processes in its strategy, business and operating plans.

There are no risks which, in the opinion of the Board, threaten the very existence of your
Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During FY 2022, the Company met criterial specified under Section 135(1) of the Act and
accordingly the Board of Directors of your Company in its meeting held on June 10, 2021 has
formulated and adopted Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company indicating therein
the projects or programs, the Company plans to undertake, which fall within the purview of
Schedule VI to the Act. The said policy forms part of this report as ‘Annexure- 3’.

Further, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was
not applicable on the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, role of
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is being discharged by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

Further, your Company was not required to spend any amount during FY 2022 towards CSR
activities in compliance with Section 135 of the Act read with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. An Annual Report on CSR forms part of this report as
‘Annexure- 4’. :

DISCLOSURE _UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has put requisite
policy in place, for prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment of women at
workplace (“Policy”). This comprehensive policy ensures gender equality and the right to work
with dignity. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been constituted as per provisions of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.

During FY 2022 and till the date of this report, no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was
received.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, is given
in “Annexure — 5.



SIGNIFICANT AND/OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR THE COURTS

There were no significant and/or material orders passed against your Company by the regulators
/ courts / tribunals during the year under review impacting the going concern status and your
Company'’s operations in future.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During FY 2022, the Company had complied with the applicable secretarial standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Act, it is hereby confirmed that:

(a) In the preparation of the financial accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the Company
for that year ended on that date;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis;

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Board is grateful to express its deep sense of gratitude and appreciation to all the
Shareholders, Customers, Suppliers/ Vendors, Bankers, Financial Institutions and Business
Associates of the Company for their continued support during the year. Your Board acknowledges
support and cooperation received from all the regulatory authorities of the Central Government
and State Government respectively.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the commitment
displayed by all executives, officers and employees for their performance during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MAX ESTATES LIMITED

bt

ishi Raj Bishwajit Das
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 08490762 DIN: 00029455
Date: May 16, 2022 Correspondence Add.. Max Towers, L-12, C- 001/A/1

Place: Noida, U.P. Sector- 16B Noida Gautam Buddha Nagar UP 201301



Annexure- 1

Form AOC-1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate compénies or
joint ventures

Part A - Subsidiaries
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

S. Particulars Max Towers [Mlax Square Pharmax
No. Private Limited [Limited Corporation
Limited
1. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, | April 1, 2021 to | April 1, 2021 to | April 1, 2021 to
if different from the holding company’s March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2022
reporting period.
2. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
3 Equity Share capital 6506.00 7001.96 555.92
4 Other Equity 27799.50 20.71 1920.94
5. | Total Assets 45094.28 30122.35 6918.29
6. | Total Liabilities 45094.28 30122.35 6918.29
7 Investments - - 1274.28
8. | Totalincome ' 3161.21 - 379.90
9. | Profit before taxation 1057.93 (33.04) 54.88
10. | Provision for taxation o 352.88 - -
11. | Profit after taxation 705.05 (33.04) 54.88
12. | Other Comprehensive income (0.01) - -
_13. | Total Comprehensive income - (0.01) - -
14. | Proposed Dividend - - -
15. | Extent of shareholding (in %) 100% 51% 85.17%

PART — B - Not Applicable since there are no associates or joint ventures of the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MAX ESTATES LIMITED

Y

Bishwajit Das

Rishi Raj

Whole Time Director Director

DIN: 08490762 DIN: 00029455
Date: May 16, 2022 Correspondence Add.: Max Towers, L-12, C- 001/A/1

Place: Noida, U.P. Sector- 16B Noida Gautam Buddha Nagar UP 201301



RAGHAV BANSAL & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

133-A, Pocket- F, MIG Flats, GTB Enclave, Delhi-110093
Contact: +919810296902,91+9354023504

Email: csraghavbansal@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended 31*March, 2022)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

MAX ESTATES LIMITED

419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar,
Village Railmajra, Tehsil Balachaur,
Nawanshehar, Punjab -144533

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Max Estates Limited(hereinafter called “the Company” or
“MEL").Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification ofbooks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March,
2022,complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022according to the provisions
of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

Il.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder(Not
Applicable to the Company as the shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchange);

Ill.  The Depositoriés Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framedthereunder(Not Applicable to
the Company during the Audit period);

IV.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);
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V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-(Not Applicableto the Company as the shares of the Company are not
listed on any stock exchange)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to the extent applicable;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

VI.  We, based upon the Management Representation, further report that there are adequate systems and
Processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with the following pertinent laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as specifically
applicable to the Company and Other Applicable Laws on the basis of representation received from the
management:

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 and rules of the state(s) where project
were being undertaken;

Transfer of Property Act, 1882;

TheBuilding and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment & Conditions of Service)
Act, 1996.

Indian Stamp Act, 1899.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)with regard to Board
Meetings and General Meetings.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations,Guidelines, Standards, etc. We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws
including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit as same are
subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.
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2. We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors.The changes in the composition of the Board
ofDirectors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with theprovisions of the Act.

Adequate notices was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (including shorter
noticesduly ratified by majority of Directors), and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions at the Board Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded minutes of
the Board of Directors.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size andoperations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations andguidelines.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms integral part
of this report.

For Raghav Bansal & Associates

Lrgs

Raghav Bansal

M.No :38864
CcP 114869

UDIN: A038864D000328318

Place: Delhi

Date:16-05-2022
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report of Max Estates Limitedfor financial year ended 31°'March, 2022

To,

The Members

MAX ESTATES LIMITED

419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar,
Village Railmajra, Tehsil Balachaur,
Nawanshehar, Punjab -144533

Management Responsibility for Compliances

Qw\w %,

Raghav Bansal
Practicing Company Secretary

The maintenance and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, secretarial standards are the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and
practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. '

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

M.No :38864

cp

: 14869

UDIN: A038864D000328318
Place: Delhi
Date: 16-05-2022
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Annexure - 3
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY
PREAMBLE

1.1 Corporate Social Responsibility has been an area of focus for the Max Group and
Max Estates Limited (‘MEL”" or the “Company”) since inception. Max Group being in
the “Business of Life", there has been a conscious effort to make a difference in the
lives of the less privileged through its CSR initiatives. MEL by giving due priority to
CSR has and will attempt to effect positive change in the quality of life of the
underserved in line with the Group philosophy.

1.2 The Companies Act, 2013 brings an even greater emphasis on CSR with Rules that
provide guidance on minimum CSR spend, reporting mechanism, review structure
and reporting to the shareholders of the Company. A CSR Committee has been
formed at the Board level to oversee CSR activities of the Company.

1.3 Further to the above stated, the Board shall approve the CSR Policy as formulated
and proposed by the CSR Committee with an objective to outline its CSR focus
areas, recommending the amount of CSR Expenditure, execution process, review &
monitoring mechanism and reporting process to the Management and the Board of
Directors of the Company.

PHILOSOPHY & OBJECTIVES

MEL has the vision to facilitate Intellectual & Financial Capital to promising and proven
early-stage organizations across identified sunrise sectors. Care for the environment and
community is MELs’ Core Value to bring about strong social relevance. Our objective is to
make a meaningful and sustained impact on the lives of the beneficiaries of our programs.

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

“Act” shall mean the Indian Companies Act, 2013, along with amendments thereto.
“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company

“CSR” means corporate social responsibility.

“CSR Activities” shall mean the permissible CSR activities as per Schedule Vi to the Act
including but not limited to the following —

(i) Health & Hygiene;

(i) Sanitation;

(iii) Education; .

(iv) Rural Development;

(v) Social and Economic Development;

(vi) Environment;

(vii) Protection of National Heritage, Art and Culture;
(vii)  Armed Forces, War Widows and their dependents;
(ix) Sports;

(x) Technology Incubators; and,

(xi) Slum area development.

“CSR Committee” shall mean the CSR Committee of the Board instituted by the Company.

“CSR Rules” shall mean the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time.

“MEL CSR Policy” or “CSR Policy” shall mean this CSR Policy of MEL.



“Max Group” shall mean (i) Max Ventures and Industries Limited, (ii) Max India Limited, (iii)
Max Financial Services Limited and the their subsidiaries/ associates.

“Max India Foundation” means the registered not-for-profit Trust, founded by Max India
Limited as its Founder/Settlor on January 31, 2002.

“Implementation Plan” shall mean the annual implementation plan in respect of the CSR
Activities as may be approved by the authorised officials appointed by the CSR Committee
of MEL.

“Rules” shall mean the rules prescribed under the Companies Act, as amended from time
to time.

“Schedule VII" shall mean the Schedule VII under the Act.

MODALITIES OF EXECUTION AND IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULES

4.1 Implementation approach: The CSR activities shall be executed by the Company
through following modes:

(a) either directly by the Company, and/or
(b) through Max India Foundation which will in turn work with relevant credible NGOs
and organisations to execute work on the ground.

4.2 NGO Support: Max India Foundation will execute projects with the help of NGOs
and employee engagement. Max India Foundation may seek the support of NGOs
who are working on ground on issues decided upon. Max India Foundation will also
provide requisite training support to volunteers to carry out / support in CSR
activities.

4.3 Volunteering: MEL and Max India Foundation should work together to create a
comprehensive Employee Volunteering programme to ensure greater participation of
employees in CSR activities. This programme should also include the recognition
programme for CSR volunteers. MEL Management will encourage volunteer
programmes / participation of the MEL employees.

44 Modality of Execution of CSR Activities: The Company shall execute and
undertake the CSR activities in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Act and in line with Implementation Plan.

4.5 While formulating the implementation plan, following points must be taken care of:
(i) Programme Objective
(i) Duration of the programme
(i)  Funds allocated to the programme
(iv)  Implementation schedule
(V) Responsibilities and authorities
(vi)  Major results expected and measurable outcome
(vii)  Effective monitoring and evaluation

46 Geographical Areas for CSR Activities:

MEL shall undertake the CSR activities in and around the areas where the Company
operates or as may be identified in consultation with Max India Foundation.

CSR FUNDING AND CSR EXPENDITURE
5.1 CSR Budget: In order to ensure funding for the CSR Activities, MEL shall strive to

allocate 2% (two per cent) of the average net profits made by the Company
(Shareholders’ Profit) in its immediately preceding three financial years.
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CSR Expenditure: The Implementation Plan of the Company shall include the CSR
expenditure in line with the CSR budget. The implementation plan shall be presented
before the CSR Committee / Board on an annual basis or as and when required by
the CSR Committee/ Board.

Declaration: The Company hereby declares that any surplus arising and/or
additional revenue generated out of CSR Activities undertaken by the Company shall
not form part of the business profit of the Company and same shall be spent for
undertaking any CSR Activities only.

Monitoring Process of CSR Activities

6.1

6.2

6.3

Approval of Implementation Plan — CSR Committee shall formulate and
recommend to the Board, an annual action plan in pursuance of this CSR policy,
which shall include the following, namely:

(i)  the list of CSR projects or programmes that are approved to be undertaken
in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VIl of the Act;

(i)  the manner of execution of such projects or programmes as specified in
sub-rule (1) of rule 4 of the CSR Rules;

(iii) the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the
projects or programmes;

(iv) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; and

(v) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken
by the company.

The Board may alter such plan at any time during the Financial Year, as per the
recommendation of the CSR Committee, based on the reasonable justification
to that effect.

Human Resource Department/implementation Team shall be responsible to
present the progress updates before the CSR Committee/ Board as may be
required from time to time.

Impact assessment of CSR Projects — As and when the average CSR
obligation becomes ten crore rupees or more in pursuance of Section 135 of the
Act, the Company shall undertake impact assessment of its CSR projects and
report to Board, in the manner stipulated under CSR Rules.

Reporting to CSR Committee- Human Resource Department/ Implementation
Team of the Company in consultation with Max India Foundation shall provide a
detailed progress report on the CSR activities to the CSR Committee annually or
at such intervals and at such times as the CSR Committee shall require to do so.
The progress on CSR activities selected by the Company shall be reported in the
Annual Report in the format prescribed under CSR Rules.

6.4 Reporting to the Board- The CSR Committee shall submit its report giving status of

the CSR Activities undertaken, CSR Expenditure incurred and such other details as
may be required by the Board, in accordance with applicable laws.

6.5 Board Report and Annual Report-The Board shall publish this Policy and an

annual report on CSR Activities as per applicable laws.

POWERS OF THE BOARD

In case the Board determines that the amount to be spent by the Company as per
Section 135 of the Act is not expected to exceed fifty lakh rupees in a financial year
subsequently, the Board may not formulate / dissolve, if already formulated, the CSR



Committee and accordingly, the functions of CSR Committee provided under this
Policy shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MAX ESTATES LIMITED

| (-

Rishi Raj Bishwajit Das

Whole Time Director Director

DIN: 08490762 DIN: 00029455
Date: May 16, 2022 Correspondence Add.: Max Towers, L-12, C- 001/A/1

Place: Noida, U.P. Sector- 16B Noida Gautam Buddha Nagar UP 201301
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K.K. MANKESHWAR & CO. 121, POCKET-1 JASOLA

NEW DELH! - 110 025
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel. : +91-11-41402828

del@kkmindla.com

Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of Max Estates Limited

Report on Audlt of Financlal Statements
Opinlon

We have audited the accompanyling Financial Statements of M/s Max Estates Limited
("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equlty and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policles and
other explanatory information (herelnafter referred to as “FInancial Statements”).

In our oplnion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Financlal Statements give the Information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and falr view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, of its profit and total comprehensive
Income (comprising profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended on that date.

Basls for eplnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibllities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements
sectlon of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financlal Statements under
the provislons of the Act and the Ruies thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibliities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basls for our oplnion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other
Information comprises the information included in the director’s report, but does not
Include the flnancial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The director’s report
Is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinlon on the financlal statements does not cover the other information and we do
hot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibillty Is to read the
other Informatlon identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstatedy




‘ When we read the director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibillties of management and those charged with governance for the
Financlai Statements

The Company!s Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in Sectlon 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financlal pesition, financlal performance,'changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, Including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibllity also inciudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularitles; selectlon and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the éccountlng
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that
glve a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error,

In preparing the Financlal Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s abllity to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the golng concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic aiternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audlt of the FInanclal Statements

Our objectlves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance
Is a high levei of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs wili always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are consldered material If, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic declsions of users taken
on the basis of these Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exerclse professional judgment and
malntain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

» Identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

i basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
“\wsh,, rom fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion,
A&rgery, Intentional omissions, Misrepresentations, or the override of Internal




control. i

¢ Obtain an understanding of internai control relevant to the audit in order to design
audIt procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i)
of the Act, we are also responslble for expressing our opinlon on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based cn the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a golng concern. If we conciude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related
disclosures In the Financlal Statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinlon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtalned up-to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a golng concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentatlon, structure and content of the Financlal Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactlons and events in a manner that achleves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any
significant deficlencies in Internal control that we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
Independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”)
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we
give In "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified In paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

8. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of ouc knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes




In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statemment of Profit and Loss Including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;:

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Sectlon 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) rules, 2015 as amended.

On the basls of the written representations recelved from the directors as
on 31st March, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from belng
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financlal reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “"Annexure B”; and

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the company for the year ended 31st March, 2022,

With respect to the other matters to be Included Iin the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our oplnion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on Its
flnancial position in the Financial Statements (refer Note no. 26(11)
of financial statements):

in The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derlvatives contracts for which there were any materlal
foreseeable losses;

i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and bellef, no funds (which are materlal either
Individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or In any other
person or entity, Including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
\In other persons or entitles Identifled in any manner whatsoever by



or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiarles”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and bellef, no funds (which are material either
individually or In the aggregate) have been recelved by the
Company from any person or entity, including forelgn entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded In
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or Invest in other persons or entities identifled in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarles;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the clrcumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ll} of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)
and (b) above, contaln any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared/pald any dividend during the year

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS

Partner

Membershlp No. 097820
For and on behalf of
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO.,

and hence provisions of section 123 of the Act is not applicable..

094

Chartered Accountants

FRN:- 106009W

OPIN12 oT3820 AT (NYCIB L2
New Delhi, dated the

16 May 2022



Annexure“A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirement” section of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financlal statements for the year ended March
31, 2022, we report that:

1. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (I} The Company has maintained Proper records showlng full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment
and relevant detalls of right-of-use assets,

(II) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(b) The fixed asset have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our oplnion, the
frequency of verlfication of the fixed asset is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and the nature of Its assat.

(¢) According to the Information and explanations given by the management, there
are no immovable properties, included In property, plant and equipment of the
company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(d) The Company has not revalued any of Its Property, Plant and EqQuipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending agalnst the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for hoiding any benaml property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibitlon) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

2. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year.
In our ophion, the frequency of such verification Is reasonabie. The
discrepancies notliced on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not material.

(b) The Company has not been sanctloned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5
Crore, in.aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basls of security of current assets and hence
reporting under clause 3(il)(b) of the Order Is not applicable.

3. According to the information and explanations glven to us, the Company has
not made any Investment, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnershlps or any other parties. Accordingly, the
provislons of clause 3(ill)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and () of the Order are not

N applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

4, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no loans, investments, guarantees and securitles given in respect of
which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicabie to
s, the company. Further, since the company Is an Infrastructure company wilthin
% the meaning of schedule VI of the companles Act, 2013, the provision of section




186 of companles Act, 2013 Is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning
of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified. Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order Is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintalned by the Company
pursuant the rules made by the Central Government for the malntenance of cost
records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to
construction industry and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of .the books of account, and records, the Company has
been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues Including
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable In respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a perlod of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable.

b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and the records
of the Company, details of Sales Tax and Value Added Tax which have not
been deposited as at March 31, 2022 or account of dispute are given below:

]

Nature Nature Forum where Perlod Amount
of the of Dues Dispute Is to (In
statute pending which Lakhs)
the
Amount
Relates
UK VAT Value Joint AlY. 21.24%
Act, Added Commissioner 2016-
2005 Tax (Appeals) 17

* Net of Protest

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have

been surrenderedor disclosed as income durin
under the.Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961). =




10.

11.

12,

9. (a) According to the information and explanatlons give to us and-based on our

examination of the records of the Company has not defaulted in repayment

of loans or other borrowings or in the

lerider during the year.

institution orgovernment or any government authority,

under clause 3(Ix)(c) of the Order Is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not ralsed any funds on short term basis.

under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order Is not applicable.

payment of Interest thereon to any

(b) The Company has not been declared wiiful defaulter by any bank or financlal

(c¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year. Hence, reporting

Hence reporting

(e) On an overall examination of the financlal statements of the Company, the

Company has taken funds from entity on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiarles as below:

Name of Relatlen | Nature of
Nature of Name of Amount | the Transaction
Fund Taken | Lendar Involvad | subsidiary, for which Remarks,
{amount | Joint funds if any
In Lacs Ventures, utilized
- Assoclates
Unsecured
Unsecured Max 500.00 Loan-
Loan from Ventures & Pharmax Subsidiary | Operational
Holding Industries Corporation Expenses
| Company Limited | | Limited

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting
on clause 3(Ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(2) The Company has not ralsed moneys by way of Initlal public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of theOrder Is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has.
been filed In Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
whistle blower complaints received during the year by the Company.
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
the Order is not appllcab_lg?"" %
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13.

14,

18.

18.

17.

18.

19.

According to the information and explanation glven by the management, all
transaction with related partles are In compliance with section 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 wherever applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to financial Statement, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provision of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xlii) In so far as It relates to section 177 of the Act is
not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon

(a) According to the information and explanations glven by the management,
the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

{b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit,
Issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactlons withits Directors or’persons connected with its directors. and Hence
provisions of section 192 of theCompanies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(a) In our opinlon, the Company Is not required to be registered under sectlon 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a)
of the Order Is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of Indla Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b)
of the Order Is not applicable.

() In our opinion, the Company Is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)
(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)} According to the information and explanation given to us by the
management, the Group has one CIC which is registered with the Reserve Bank
of India.

The Company has not Incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
our audlt and the Company has Incurred cash losses in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financlal ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financia! assets
and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attentlon, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the dat 'io?_‘!:h g
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabllities exi%_'_l:}hg at th&dute




of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabllities falling due within a perlod of one year from
the balance sheet date, wili get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

20. The provisions of section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the,
' Company. Accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Partner

Membership No. 097820 -
K. K. Mankeshwar & Co., °
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 106009W
LYTN- 20097826 AN EG N WY 4 2
New Delhi; dated the
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“"ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON-
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MAX ESTATES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financlal controls over financial reporting of M/s Max
Estates Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 In conjunction with our audit of
the financlal statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibliiity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
flnancial controls based on the Internal control over financial repoiting criteria
established by the Company considering the essentlal components of internal control
stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financlal Controls over Financlal
Reporting issued by the Instltute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibllities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficlent conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an oplinion on the Company’s internal flnanclal controls
over flnanclal reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audlt of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethica! requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
Internal financial controls over financlal reporting was established and malntained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal flnanclai controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financlal reporting included
obtaining an understanding of Internal financial controls over financlal reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit gp nlon on the Company’s internal financial controls system

over financial reporting #%@8/4 .\
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Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls over Flnancial Reporting

A company’s Internal financial control over financlal reporting is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabllity of financial reporting and the
preparation of financlal statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s Internal financla! control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertaln to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and falrly reflect the transactions' and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabie assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financlal statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are belng made only In accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitatlons of Internal Financla! Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limltations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibllity of collusion or Improper management override of controls,
materlal misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the Internal financal controls over financlal reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the Interna! financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditlons, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinlon

In our opinion, the Company has, In all material respects, an adequate interna!l financial
controls system over financlal reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal
control over financlal reporting criteria established by the Company consldering the
essential components of Internal contro! stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Flnancial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
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Max Estates Limited
Batance sheet as at March 31, 2022

iRs. In Lacs:
Notes - Asat As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current ussets
Property, plent and equipment. 3 1149t 83.05
Investment Property ar 7.451.46 7.446.94
Cther Intangible assets 4 3.45 5.78
Financial assets 5
(i) Investment 50,003,88 49,707.57
(ii) Other financizl assats 1,357.97 715,19
Other non current assets 6 953,55 270.72
Deferred tax assets 86.51 .
) 59,971.74 54,129.25
Current assets
Inventories 7 1,345.25 3.217.27
Financial assets 8
(i) Trade receivables *162.95 50 64
(i} Cash and cash equivalenty 56,05 287.77
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 3,543.88 5,291.60
(iv) Loans 3,089.57 1,233.92
{v) Other financial assets 33598 108.2}
Other current assets 9 33369 45590
8.867.37 11.645.31
TOTAL ASSETS 68,839.11 68.174.56
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital i0 7.791.00 7,791.00
Other equity 10 - 52.800.41 52 143.44
Total equity 60,591.41 59.934.44
Non-current liabilltles
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 3,661.88 3,805.08
(ii) Other financiel liability 12 830,02 379.63
Provisions 13 56.82 42.55
454472 4,217.26
Current liabilitles
Financial liabilities 14
{i) Borrowings 2.830.10 3,342.60
(i) Trade pravables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 4,63 159.79
(b} Tetal cutsianding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and smalt enterprises 307.96 552.55
(iii) Other financial liabilities 129.98 90.01
Other current liabilities 15 343,56 488,81
Provisions 16 82,75 78.10
3,698.98 4.712.86
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8.247.70 #.940.12
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - 68439.11 68.974.56

Summary of significant accounting policies
Other notes on accounis

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS

ie%ga intggral part of the Rnancial statements
=
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Partner .'rs'b

Membership No. 097820 I Chartered \e2!
Faor and on behalf o I Accountants
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO, L}’ !
Chortered Acconrmunty k.
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Max Estates Limited

|

/ 1 J
‘.-u\-b _,"' { rl, el Ey i ";LOL

Bishwajit Dus Kishansingh Ray:|nghaney

(Director) (Director)
(DIN 00029455) {DIN 00329411}

Lusstnmod)

Nitin Kumar Kansnl
{Chief Financial Officer) . 5;‘_ J

Place: Nb—t M "-;__._.

|G Moy 2500



Max Estates Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

'{Rs. in_Lacs)
Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
INCOME
Revenue from operations 17 390422 1.872.19
Other incoma 18 1.046.49 1.070.9%
Total income 494771 294318
EXPENSES
Cost of material eonsumed, constvuction & other related project cost 18.1 - -
(increasc)/decrease in inventories of work-in-progress 18.2 1,850.95 1,557.96
Employee benefits expense 19 598.73 501,75
Finance costs 20 725.88 1,156.56
Depreciztion and amortization expense 21 144.47 66.01
Other expenses - 110022 876,54
Total expenses 4.421.25 4,158.82
Profit/(Loas) before tax 526.46 (1,215.64)
Tax expenses
= Current tax
- Income tax for eerlier yegrs 0,07
- Defierred tax - .
Total tax expense - 0.07
Profit/(Loss) after tax 526.46 11.215,71;
Other comprehensive income -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement losses on defined bensfit plans 23 3.93 (9.79)
Income tax effect *
3.93 .79
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 3.93 (9.7
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 530.39" i1225.50)
Earnings per equity share {Nomlinal Value of share Ra.10%) (refer note 24}
Basic (Rs) 067 (1.56)
Diluied (Rs.) 0.12 (0.27)
Summary of significan! accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-3%
For and cn behulf of the Board of Directors of
x Estates Limlted i
[ ™ S
The ac »ﬂ ying notes aro integrel pant of the financial statements ; "l Ly jgw.‘-‘] o 1-"“}'
|, o ___.-"'"'_'_-.
"l’ Bishwajit Das i Klshansingh Ramsing)aney
N (Director) (Director)
| {DIN 00029455) {DIN 00325411)

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Fartner

Membership No. (97820

For and on behalf of
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CQ.
Chartered Accouniants
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Max Estates Limited
Statement of cash flows for year ended March 31, 2022

Ry in Lacaj
For the yearended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 Marceh 31, 2021
Cash flow from operating sctivities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 526.46 (1,215.64)
Adjustmeats to reconcile profit before tax to net eash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and squipment 141.72 63.28
Amortization of intangible assets 2.75 2.73
Employee stock option schems expenses - 25.57
Liability no longer required written back (30.57) (3.46)
Loas on dispoeal of property, plent and equiproent 042 3.83
Interest income (941.41) (1,049.80)
Guarantea fee incomo (14.72) -
Profit on sale of current investment - {0.20)
Finance costs {inchuding fuir valoe change in financial instruments) 725.88 1,098.92
Operating profit before working capital changes 410.53 (L,074.77)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables (369.92) (112.14)
Increase/ (decreass) in long-tarm provisions 1427 (5.55)
Increase/ (decrease) in other non current financial liability . 117.23
Increase/ (decrease) in short-term provisions 365 5.16
Increase/ (decrease) in other cument labilities (145,25) 116.68
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial lisbilities 508.92 3020
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (112.31) (33.54)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 1,872.01 1,521.13
Decreass / (ncrease) in other current and non current assets (121.87) 94.24
Decrease / (increase) in current and non current financial agsets 1170.27| 17.89
Cash generated from operations 1,889.78 683.13
Income tax paid 1140.52) 178.83)
Net cash flows used in operating activities 1,749.26 604.30
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchese of property, plant and equipment (inchuding intangible (54.79) (38.57)
assets, CWIP and capital advances)
Procesds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.712 7.00
Invegtment in Subsidiary compamy - (2,421.45)
Loan/Repaymant of loan from/to subsidiary company (1,855.65) (1,233.93)
Investment in Investment propasty (674.69) (1,634.39)
Investment in Mutual Fund - 0.20
Interest recaived 247.27 429.50
Net cash flows used in investing nctivities (2,337.14) (4,891,64)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issus of compulsorily convertible debentures - 20,200.00
Interest paid (729.72) (1,087.04)
Proceeds from shert-term borrowings from Holding/subsidiary compeny (net) (599.13) (17,063.06)
Proceeds/{Repayment) fromv/of long-term borrowings 162.70% 2,407,690
Net cash flows from financing activities (1,391.54) 4,457.59
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash squivalents (1.979.44) 170.25
Cazh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5479.37 5.409.12
Cash and cash equivalents at year ended 3.599.93 %,579.37
Farticulars Aswt Nat Caah Flows Othery Ayt
st Ainil, 2025 Sst March, 2022
Non-current borrowings 3,805.08 {149.33) 613 366188
Short termy/ Current matutities of Borrowings 3,342,650 1512.50) - 2,830.10
Investrnents 48,707.57 - 296,31 50,003.88
o Total 56,855.25 (661.83) 302.44 56,495.86
Particulars Aset Net Cash Flowy Others As ot
1st Apeil, 2020 315t March, 2021
Non-curment borrowings 1,479.95 2,322.39 270 3,805.08
Short tarm/ Current maturities of Borrewings 20,339.60 {16,997.00) - 3,342.60
Investments 47,286.13 2,399.80 21.64 49,707.57
e i TH.‘\_\ Total 69,105.72 {12,274.31) 2434 56,855.25

Ql‘/ -’.




Components of cash and cash equivalents :-

Baiances with banks:

On current accounts

Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months
Cash on hand

Summary of significant accounting poiicies
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations
Other notes on accounts
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Add: Equity share issued during the year (refer nate 10(i))
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Max Estates Limited

2.1

Corporate Information

Max Estates Limited (the Compeny) is 8 company registered under Companies Act, 2013 and incarporated on 22nd March 2016, The Company engaged in the business of’ Real
Estates development. Repistered office of'the Company is located at 419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar. Village Railmajra, Tehail Balachaur, Nawanshehar, Punjab - 144533

The financial statemensts were authorised for issuance in accordance with resolution of dirsctors on May 16, 2022,
Signifiennt accounting policies :

Baals of preparation

Thess separate financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under tha Companiea {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 {as emended from time to time) and presentation requirements of division 11 of Schedule 111 1o the Compenics Act 2013 {Ind AS Compliant Schedula 111, 21
applicable to these separate financial statements. :

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the Following assete and liabilities which have been measured a Fir value

(i} Cortain financial assets and lisbilities that are measured at fair value
Financial Statement are presented in INR and ali values are rounded to nearest Lacs {INR 00.000) except when otherwise stated

Summary of signiflcant accounting policlen
Current versus nan-curvent classifieation

The Company presents assats and liabilities in the balence sheet based on current non-current classification. An assel is treated as current when it s:
(i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normai operating cycle

{ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading '

(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle u liability for at lenst rwelve months after the reporting period

T P T N T TR T PRV L[ 1 e T S ey

A lisbility ia current when:

{ii} It is expected to be setrled In normal operating cycle

{ii) 1t is held primarily for the purpose of rading

(iii) 1t is due to sestled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There ia no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liakility for at least twelve momhs after the reporting period

The Compeny clagsifies all other lizbilities as non-current.
EREle il ey sy b ol |pla®enies i o Nidinadims] i sianw i (i anan o s Bl il b s
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Property, Plant and Eqaipment

Linder Lhe previous GAAP ([ndian GAAP), all assets were carried in the Balance Sheet at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmeni losses, if any On the dute
of transition to IND AS, the Company has applied exemption of Ind AS 101 10 continue carrying value of all property, plant and squipment as at the date of (ransition as its desmed
cosl. .

Property, Plant 8nd equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less nccumulated depreciation and accumulnted impairment lossas, if any. The cost comprises of
purchase price, taxes. duties, fraight and other incidantal expenses directly attributable and relaled to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets snd are further adjusted by
the amount of CENVAT credit and VAT credit aveiled wherever applicable. When significant parts of plam and equipment are required to be replaced sl intervals, the Compuny
depreciates them separalely based on their respective useful lives Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost ia recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipnient ny a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized In profit or loss s incurrsd.

An item of property, plat end equipment and any significunt part initially recognized is derecognized upen disposal or when no fisture economic benefits are expected from ita use or
disposal. Any gain or loas arising oh derecognition of the asse! (calcuinted an the difference between the aet disposal proceeds and the carrylng amount of the agset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the totel cost of the asset and has
useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Capital work- in- progress includes cosi of property, plant and equip under inatallation / under development 25 at the balance sheet date

The sewaait ynhyes sow®l lroee ot s Snls s lnposnmnen or propsm U] |-.'q-::u|_u-prﬂ_.q-r res e | (it vems el i i peieeads 00 repeiuw
Depreciation on prop piant and equip is provided on prerata basis on straight-line methed using the uselul lives of the assets estimated by managemem and n the manner
prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Comp Act 201 3. The useful life is a3 follows:

Amnech Useful lives estimsted by the management {years)

Furriture and fixtures 10 Years

DFfice mjlibsi 5 Years




- Though the Group measures investmen! proparty uaing cost based measurement, the thir value of'i property is di

Computers 1% waia
Vehicles W

Investment property

Reconltion and initin] measurement

Investment propertles are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. I properties are 1 initially at their cost of acquisition including
transaction costs. The cost comprises purchase price, b iny cost, " cay criteria are met and direcily attributable cost of bringiny the asset to its working condition for
the intended use Any trade discount and rebates nra deducted in amiving at the purchase price. Whe significant pans of the i Pproperty are required to be replaced at

intervais, the Group dapreciates them separately based on their specific uzeful lives,

Property held under lease is classified ns investment property when it is held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, rather than for sale in the ordinary courss of
business or for use in production or edministrative functions. Sub ] included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a Separate aspet, as appropriste, only
whan it is prababie that fture economic benefits assaciated with the ltem will flow to the Group All other repair and maintenance coats are recognised tn statement of profit and loas
a3 incurred, The cost includes the cost of replecing parts and borrowing costs for long-term oonstruction projects if the recognition criterin are met, When significant parts of the

i Pproperty are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately bayed on thelr specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or losa s incurred. :
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Extimated useful lifs of Lensehold land is over the period of lease.

d in the notes Fair values are determinod based on

#n annual evalustion parfarmed by the company applying a model
De-recognition )

investmant propertles are de-recoynised either when they have bean disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn fram wse and no future ezonomic benefit is sxpected rom
their disposal. The difference between the net dlaposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.

Deprecittion on in property has been provided on straight line method aver the useflyl Hfe of assets. Usefil lif of assets are ns under:
Building and related equip 2 15 to 60 years
Piant & machinery, furniture & fixtures and other equipments ; 6 10 10 yeary

Intanyible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognitian al cost. Following initial recogmition, intangibie assets are carried at cost less nccumuleted amortization and
eccumulated impainment lcases, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized devel p coat, are net capitalized and the related experditure is reflected in
Hatement of Profit and Loay in the period in which the expenditure is Incurred. Cost comprisey the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working

condition for its intendad use.

Tw, Wil [l 4o el vls. by bt mn wivher g oo bickiSims: Dilnillie wsnets wetl) B e i smumasi erer (e s et Ty ] saniibiad llie

Rt et Sigap e gy sslls i i g il e Lt T T e T T T P nnnef il dhan s sl i i ek silb g il .=||1||
ki o vy g Fespa n o il vif wally e g | e 0 et ] G a0 D magi (), b il v ey Ak g hivig il endifi oy (hie
i i (s e Dy Bl she iimanicsing Hriemill oa sanballl g i e s giresames e chlimen m Eramen gy e ) D gy il il
it mails Liiitel W s e b et of et ot T anlie | IS ot o 0T e s e s s

intangible assets with indefinite useful fives are not amortized, bul are tested for impairment aonally, sither individually or at the cash-generating unit level, The assexsment of

indefinite life 1 roviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life i 10 be supportable. ([ not, the change in useful fife from indsfnite to fnite is made on a
proapective basis.
Guing or losses arising from disposal of the intangible a13e18 are measured as the differance between the i ol ajsal fifyel immld i e ibebing aiswinni: of the asset and ars

recoynized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off,
Intangible asseis with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated usefl life of 1-6 years.

Imprirment of non Mnancial assets .

The Company assesses at ench raporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impuired, If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the neset's, recoverable nmount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of &n as3et’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net fair value less cost of
disposal and ils value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the anset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
oiher assets or yroups of assets. Where the carrying amount of esset or COU exceads its recoverable amount, the asset is conaldered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing vaiue in use, the estimated future cash Aows are discounted 1o their present value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflocts current market assasaments of the
time value of money and the risks specific io the asset. In determining net fhir velue less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken Into sccount, if availsble. If no such
transactions can be identified. an eppropriate valuation model is used. These calculations sre corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other availabile fir value indlcators.

The Comparry bases its impairment calculation on detsiled budgets and f calculations which are prepared saparately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which
the individual assats are allocated, These budgets and forecast caleufations are genenlly covering a period of five years. For the remalning sconomic life of the naset or cashe
yenerating unit {CGLY. n loog lerm growih rue B caleulared and applied to projest future cash flows atier the ARh vasr, To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgers/forecasts. the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing
rate can be justified In this case, the growth rate does nat excead the long-term average rowth rate for the producrs, industries. or country or countries in which the entity operates,
or for the markex in which the asset is used
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Financial Instruments
A financial instrument |s any contract that gives rise 10 a Anancial asset of ane entity and a financinl linbility or equity instrument of another antity.

(i) Fluuneial asyets

The Campany classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories .-

- Thoae te be maasured subsequently at Fair value (either through other comprehansive income or {hrough profit & loss)
- Those measured at amortized cost

Iritial recogriition and measurement

All inancial assets are recognized initlally at fair value plua. in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, trassaction costs that are attributable to the
scquisition of the finencial asset. Purcheses or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulntion or convention in the macket placa
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the C pany commits to purchase or sall the asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purpoases of subsequent messurement, Anancial assets are classified in four categories:
(i) Debt instruments at amanized cost

{ii} Debt instruments and equily instruments a1 fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debl instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following condilions are met;

(i) Businesy modal test : The asset iy held within & business mode! whose objective is ro hold assets for colleciing coniractual cash flows (vather than to sell the insrrument prior to its
contractuat maturity to released its far value change), and

{ii) Cash flow characteristica tast : Contractual terma of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI} an the principal
amount outstanding

This catagory is the most relevant 10 the Company, After initial measurement, such financial Bsseta are subsequontly measured at amortized cost uging the effsctive interest rate {EIR)
method. Amortized cast is caloulated by 1aking into account any discount or premium an acquisition and fees or coats that ave an integral part of the EIR, EIR. is the rate that exactly
discount the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financlal instrument or a shorter perlod, where appropriate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets,
When calculating the effective interest rate the company esti the ex| d cash flow by considering all comraciual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR amortization is

included in Anance income in the profit or loss. The losses ariging from impairment are recognized in the profit or |oss, This category gencrally applies to trade and other recsivables,

Dedt instruments nt Fair value through profit and leas

FVTPL is a residual cateyory for finansial inst:uments. Any financial instrement, which does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOC, is classified as 8t FYTAL. A gain or
less on o Debd instrument that is subsequently measured at FYTPL and is not a part of & hedyiny relationship is recognized in watement of profil or loas and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within other gaing or losses in the period in which it arises. Intorest income from these Debt instruments ig included in other income.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of & financial asse1 or part of & Company of similar financinl assets) is primarily derecognized (i.c.. removed from the Company's
statement of financial pasition) when:

AN i 1 e wilal Wi B ik gt Ui il

TIVHE RIS Pt Tt jo oy o o o can e 000 it P i b e om0 et UL o R s vl A tw thind e
ubieled 8 gk AUl ar e e il anhil

{8) the Company has iransferred the rights to receive cash Nows from the financial assels or

(b) the Company has rewtired the contracruml right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assurmes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients,

Where the Compeany has ferved an aseet, 1he Company evalustes whether it has transferred Aubstantially all the risks and rewards of" the ownership of the financial assets. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has nat transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the cwnership of the financinl assets, the financinl assst 33 not
derecognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retaing substantially ell risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the
Caompany has 1ot recained cantrol of the financial asset. Where the Company retaing control of the finencial asset, (he asset is continuad 10 be recognized to the extent of continuing
invalvement in the financial asset.

Inventories

Imventorien comprise completed units for sale and property under construction (Work in progress)

(A} Compieted Linsold invurlrorly is vilued at lower of cost and net realizable value Coul is determined by including cost of land, materials, services and related overheads.

(B) Work in progress is valued at cost, Cost comprises value of land (including deveiopment rights), materials, services and other overhends related to projects under construction.

Impairment of financial assets

In sccordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expacted credit loases (ECL) mode! for measurement and recogrition of impairment loxs on the following Gnancial asset and
eredit risk exposure

= Financial nssets measured at smortised cost;

- Financial assety measured st fair value through other comprehensive income (F¥TOCI),

The Company follows “simplified approach™ for recognltion of impairment loss allowance on irade receivables, Under the simplifled spproach, the Company does not track changes
in credit risk, Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs st each reporting date, right from irs initial recognition. (he Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment bass allowance on the portfolio of rade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed gefuult rates over the expected life of trade
rectivable and is edjusted for forward [ooking esti AL every reparting daie, the historical cbserved default rates are updated and chenges in the forward loaking estimates are
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As 2 practical expedient, the Company uses a provision mntrix to determine impairment loss allowance on porifoiio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
himtorically observed defbult rates over the expected life of tlie trade receivables and is adjusted for Forward- looking estimates At every reporting date, the historical obssrved
default rates are updated and changes in the forward- locking estimates are analysed.

Reclassification of Mnancial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and Babilities on initial recogpition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made For financial nasets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilitles. For financial assets which are deb instruments, & reclasification is made only if there is o change in the business model for managing those easets,

perform an activity thal is significant to its operations. I the Cempany reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclagsification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting period followlng the changa in business model. The Company does not restate eny previeusly recognized gains, losses ¢inchuding
impairment gaing or losses) or interent.

{li} Financial lnbilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial Habilities are clagsified at initial recognition as finencinl liabilities a1 fuir value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company financisl liabllities includa loana and borrowings including bunk overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other payables,

Tle measurement of finuncial labilitics depends on their classification, s desoribed below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior ro the end of financial year which are unpeid The amounts are unsecured and are usally
pald within 90 days of recognition, Trade and other paynbles are presented as current liabilitiea unless payment is not due within 12 months afier the reporling period. They are
recognised inilially at fhir value and subsequently measured a1 amonisad cost using EIR method

Fiouncisl liabilitics a¢ falr value through profit or lony

Financial linbilities at fuir value through profit"or loss include fnancinl liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initiaf recoynition a3 al fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if' they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term Gains or losses on linbilities held for trading are
recagnised in the statement of profit and loss Financial linbilities d ignated upon initjal gnition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial dwte of
recogmition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109 ara satisfied. For liabilitiss designated as FVTPL, thir value pains/ losses attributable to chanyes in own credit rigk are recognised
in OCI. These gains loss are not subssquently transferred to profit and loss However, the Company may wransfer the cumulative gain or Joss within equity All ather changss in feir
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss The € y hag not designared any finanei liability as mt fir velue through profit and loss,

Loana and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised it filr velue, net of tramaction cost incurred. ARer initlal recognition, interest-bearing foana end borrawings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses nre recognised in profil or loss when the liabilities mre der grised as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into any di or premium on acquisition and Fees or casls (hat are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included as

finance casts in the statement of profit and loss

Flnancial gunrantee contracts
Financial gunrantee contracts issuad by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loas it incurs because the specified dabtor
fuily to make a payment when due in mocordance with the terms of & debt instrument, Financial gy are recogaised initially e3 a liability at feir value, adjusted for

transaction costs that are directly artributable to the jzsuance of the guarantes. Subsequently, the libility is d at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined ay per
impairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount recognlsed lass cumulative amortization *
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Offsetting of finnncial Instruments
Financial nggets and financial linbilities are offvet and the net amount 1s reported in the balance sheet if there i n currently enforceable legal right 10 cifsel the recognized smounts
nnd there i an intention to settle on  net basis, to realize the assets and settle the linbilities simultaneously,

Investment In Subsidiaries

- Tha investmeni in subsidinries are carried at cost ax per IND AS 27 Investinent carried at cost ia tested for impairment as per IND AS 36 An investor, regardless of the nature of its

invoivement with an entity (the investee), shall determine whether it is a parent by azseasing whether it contrals the investea. .
On disposal of investment, the difference between its carvying amount and net disposal proceeds i charged or credited 10 the siatement of profit and loss.

Revenue Recoguition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the sconomic bensfits will flow to the Company and the revenus can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met befors revenue Is recognized:

(i} Revenne I8 recognised over time if either of the followlug conditions Is met:
a. Buyers take all the beneflta of the property as real estate developers construct the property.

b. Buyers obtain physical possession of the property it
P AT
/3 Cha




c. The property unit to be delivered iz specified in the contract and resl estate entity does not have an altemative use of the unit; the buyer does not have the discretion to tensinate
the contract and the entity has right to payment for work completed to date.
In case nene of these conditiana is met, revenue would be recognised at a poirt in time when the control of the property is passad on to the customer.

(1) Revenue froms shared services

Revenue trom shared services is recognized over the period of contracl, as and when services arc rendered

{ili) Revenne from project g Itancy / d

Revenue from project management consultancy / secondment |s recognized as per the tarms of the agreemen? on the hasis of servicas rendered.

(iv) Galn on snle of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the carrying amount and net disposal procends is recognised 1o the profit and loss siatement.

(v} Imerest and diract expenditure autributable to specific projects are capitalized in the cost of project, other intereat and indirect costs are trented &5 'Period Cost” and charged to
Profit & Loss account in the period in which it is incurred.

(vl) All other incomes and expenditures are accounted for on eccrual basis

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tex essets and lisbilities are measured at the amount expecred 10 be recovered fom or paid 16 the tnxarion euthorities in nocordance with the tncome Tax Act, 1961
2ad the Income ion and disclosure dands {ICDS) d In Indin by using tax rates and tax |aws that are d or sub ively enacted, at the reporting data,

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside proflt or loss is recognized cutside profit or loes {either in cther comprehenaive incoma or in equity). Current tax items are
recopnized in comrelation to the underlylng transaction either in GCI or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with reapect 1o
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where eppropriate. ’

Deferred tax
Deterred tax is provided using the liability methed on temporary differences b the tax bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reparting purposes
at the reporting dare

Deferred tax finbilitien are recognised for all 1axable lemporay differances

Deferred tax assels are recognized For all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tex 2asets are recogmized to
the extent that it is probabls that taxable profit will be available against which the deduciible tempornry differences, and the carry forward of unused t1ax credits and unusad tax losses
cen be utilized

The canying amount of deferred tax exsets is reviewed ar sach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no lomger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
tllow all or part of the defarred tax asset to be uiilized. Unrecognized deferrad tax asseis are re-nssessed at sach reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it hes become
probable that future taxable profits vAll aliow the deferred tax maset 1o be recoverad

[twvenilors pomy mub [kaliminn vy bemiiniiil e fl s ditis il e eafne il b v s it et dabel il s s spalie s s (s il ¥ o by Taves ] S
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Defarred 1ax relating to items recognized outside proft or loss is gnized outside the of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax
iterun are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lisbilities are offset i a leyally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assors against current tax lisbilities and the defecrad taxes relute to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation suthority.

The Company recopnizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convinging evidence thet the Company will pay normal incoma tax during the specified
period, L.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carrigd forward, The Company reviews the "MAT cradit entitiement™ nsset at ezch reporting date and writes down the
asss! to the extent the Campany does nol have convinging evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specifled period
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Company r1 a leasee

A lesse is classified at the inception date as a finance lense or an operating lease, A fease that transfers subatantially all the risks and rewnrds incidental 1o ownership Lo the Company
is classified as a fimance lease.

Finance [eases are capitalized at the commencement of the laase al the inception date ut fsir value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Loasa payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease linbifity 0 a8 to achieve n constant rte of interest on the remuining balunce of the
liability. Finance charyes are recognized in finance coats in the statenient of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized
in eecordance with the Compeny's general policy on the borrawing costs,

A lensed aseet is depreciated aver the useft life of the assel. However. if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will cbiain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
assel is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated usefusl life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease paymenta are recognized ag an sxpense in the statement of profit and loss on & straight-ling basis over the leasa term unless the payment ere structured to increase in
tine with expected general inflation to compenaate for the losses in expected inflationary cost i




Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not tranafer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership of an asset are classified na operating leases. Rental income nrising iy
accounted for on a straight-line bayis over the lease rerms, [nitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leasad
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised a3 revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Provision and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

A provision |s recounized when the Company has a present bligation (legal or ive} &s 1 reault of past event, it is probable that an outilow of bodying

benefhs will be required to settle the ablipation and a reliable estimae can be made of the amount of the obliyation. Provisions are not discounted to thair prosent velue and are

determined based on Lhe best estimate required 10 seule the abligation ar the reporting date, Thess estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjuded 1o reflect the current

bet estimates.

Contingent liabllitles

A contingant liabitity in a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the ocoyrrence or nan-oceurrence of one or move uncersein future

eventy beyond the control of the Company or g present obligation that is not il is not prak that an outflow of will be required to settle the

cbligation. A contingent liability also erises In extremely rare cases, where there is a linbility that cannor be recognized b it cannat be d reliably. the Company does not
ize 8 linbility but discloses its exi in the ft ) unless the probability of cutflow of regources is ramote.

- b

I h

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed al each balance sheet date.
Retirenient and other employee beneflts
Provident fund

The Company coniributed to smployess provident fund benefits through recognised provident fnd, contribution Lo fund has besn on thiy basia for employees and emy
il

Cl'ltlllly
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and iz provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projectsd unit credit method made et the end of each financial year.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the aaser ceiling, excluding amounts included in met interest on the net defined benefit Hability aod the retumn

on plan msseta {excluding amounts included in nat interest on the net defined benefit lighility), are recagnized immediately in the Balance Shest with a cor ponding debit or credit to
retained eamings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in aubsequent periods,
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The Company treals accumulated leave expected to be carried forward bevond twelve months, as long term employee benefit for measurenient purposes. Such long-tarm
oompensated absences are provided for based on the actuarisl valuation using the projected unit credit method &L the year end .Actuarial ghins/osses are immediately taken to the
statsment of profit and loss and are not defirred. The Companiy presents the leave g5 & current liability in the balance sheet, o the extent it does not have an unconditional right to
defer its settlement for 12 months efter the reporting date, Whers Compeny has the unconditional legal and contractuel right ta defer the sstilement for a pariod 12 months, the same
is presented as non-current liability.

Short-term obligntions

Liabitities for wages and saluries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the snd of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recoynizad in reapect of employse service upto the end of the reporting period and sre measured ut the amount expecied to be paid when the |labilitia
are seitled the liabilities are presanted as current employee benefit obligations in the balance shest.

Cagh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash a1 banks and on hand and short-term deposite with an original materity of three menths or leas, which are subject 1o an
insigniticam risk of changes in vaiue

Enrning per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profil or loss For the pericd attributable 1o equity sharcholders by the weighred average number of squity shares
outstanding during the pericd ‘The weighted averaye number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such ms bonus issue, bonus slement in a rights
igsun, share split, and reverse share split {consolidation of shares) tht have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without & comeaponding change in r

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the vear and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the
effects of all potential equity shares

Forelgn currenctes

Items included in the financial siatements are measured using the cumency of the primary econamic environment in which the entity op (‘the functlonal ¥'). the
Company's financial are predented in Indinn rupee (") which is also the Company's functicnal and presentation cunrency

Foreign currency transactians are recorded on initial r gnition in the functional currency, using the exchanye rate prevailing at the date of transaction,
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Messurement of foreign currency itens at the balance sheet date
Fomignommmmynnﬂmdlhhﬂhiudmh&hdhfomimmiumﬁmﬂmdltﬂnﬁmcﬁmalcnnmnylpatrﬂuofwwhmatﬂunpmingdm.

Non-umamyiwmﬂmn'emﬂ:mdinmofhimﬁcﬁcon in a foreign-currency are translated using the exchange rates &t the dates of the inftial transactions. Non-
monetary iterns measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dats when the fair value is dsterminad.

Exchmgedimrmnunilingmlqﬂmorhmzhﬁmofmmmmmogﬁuduh:eomeorexpensehihnpaﬁodinwlﬁeh&uynile“dﬁxthnexupﬁmnf
oxnhmnediﬂhmnelongnhu-luunilhgonmﬂnﬁmofmn-mmyimmuumduﬁi:vmwhiohismmdinlimwiﬂuhnrewmiﬁonnfﬂupinorlon on the
change in fair value of the im(i.e,mﬂniondiﬂ‘ummmiimuwhmﬁirvaluagainnrloui"ecomiudinOCIorpmﬁtnrloumllluucoguiudhOCInrpmﬁtor
losa, respectively),

Falr valoe measurement
Fairvulue'.':ﬂwpriceﬂntwmﬂdbaueeivedmnﬂmumormidmmﬁarnﬁnbﬂiwhmudﬂlymmﬁmbatwunmlrhulplrﬁcipmnntﬂmmenmmdnu.The
.ﬁirvaluumeumummilhudonﬂmpremmpﬁmﬂmﬂnmmwuﬂﬂnmwmfuthaﬁlbﬂitymksplmeiﬂm:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(ii) In the absence of a prineipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantagecus merket ttust be accessible by the Compaty. .

The fair valus ofmuuetauﬁabﬂiwilmmedmingdmumnpﬁmﬂmmmmipmumﬂduewh:upﬁningﬂnuuturliabi]ily.uuumiruﬂutnwkﬂ
participants st in theit sconomic beat interest,
Aﬁirwluammmunmtnfumn—ﬁnminlmunhlinmmmtumumpnﬁ:ipmtubﬂitymmmmicbeneﬂubyudngﬂumhiuhighnmﬂbmmnr
by selling it to enather market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Aﬂmmﬂlhbﬂiﬁuforw}ﬂchﬁi:vﬂueismﬂumdwdildondhﬂw&mﬁdsmmmumumiudwﬁﬂﬁnthnﬁinhaﬁnuhy.dcwﬁhduﬂﬂhmbmdm
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valus measurement as & whole:

(i) Lovel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assety or liabilities
(ﬁ)hvelz-Vahaﬁontuchniqumforwhinhﬂmhwthdkmmhtiusigﬁﬁmﬁhﬁrﬂmmtilﬁmwmh&uﬂhobmﬂh

(iii) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest lovel input that is significant to the fair valus meesurement is uncbservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a reowrring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred batwean levels in tha
hiﬂulybymmnhgmswinﬁm(buedonmlomnkvdinputﬂmiuisniﬁcmmﬂwﬁirmmmmulwhnle)atﬂwmdofunhmporﬁmpu‘ind.

This note summarises accouting policy for fair value. Other fhir value ralated disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
= Disclogures for valuation methords, significant estimates and assumptions

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hiscarchy

= Investment in unquoted equity shares

- Finaneial ingtruments ( including those carried at amortised cost)

Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standards ar amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standerds) Rules as issued from
time to time. 0nMamh23.2022.MCAmmdedﬂ:eCmpuuiu(hdimAccmnﬁns.Smﬂnds)Amﬁnmmzmz,ubdm

Ind AS 16
PlbpMyPlnﬂandequipmmt-Thlmmdmmehﬁﬁulhumofmtldemofihmnpm&nadwﬂ:omdwﬁuifw,ﬂmumbeﬂmpiudin&upmﬁt
nrlusbw.dodumdﬂ'omlhad.iracﬂyllﬁ'ibutableeolueonlid:mdllpmofoottofmimofpmpeﬂy,plmt.mdoquipmm'I'hneﬁuﬁ\'edlhiurldcpﬁmoﬂhil
mmdmmisnmunlpariodlbesimingnnwmml,2022.neCnmpmyhuwdumhlmdmmmdﬂmuilmhnpmtminmﬂdmaﬁnmuidmm

Ind AS37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities wnd Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that tha ‘cost of fulfilling’ & contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Culsﬂmtmlatadi:wﬂyblmtm:tclneiﬂmrbeinmmﬂmufﬁ.ﬂﬁllinnhteunum(mhlww]dbndirecthbw,mbuim)ormaﬂmnﬁmofomar
mthnmmdhﬂlywﬁﬂﬁumgwmu(mmhwddbemdhuﬁmofﬁadw:ﬁmmfumimofprcputy,plmndequipmmtuaedinﬁﬂ:ﬁllingm
sontract). The effective date for adoption of this smendment iz annual periods begitming o or after April 1, 2022, although carly adoption is permitted, The Company has
evaloated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material

Significant acconnting judgemests, sstimates end assnmaptions
[nr.hepmcauoflpplyingﬂmCunpummmningpoliciu,mwhumdalhafoﬂawhngwhichhnwhmﬂdyﬁﬁmeﬂhﬁmthmﬂ
recognized in the finansigl statements.

(a) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal end termination options - Company as leasee
ThaCompmydminnﬂmluumuﬁnnmmedhblemdﬂmlnn.mpﬂmuﬁthmypuiudacowmdbymopﬁmwmdﬂulnniﬁtilmmblyminm
be excercised, or any periods covered by an option to torminate the lease, if it is reascmubly certain not to be exercised

The Cempany has several lease coniracts that inslude extension and termination opticns, The Company applies judgement in evaluating whather it is reasonably certain
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that ¢rente an economic incentive for it to exercise cither the
mwﬂorterminnﬁnn.Aﬁerﬂ:eemmmudato,ﬁnCompanymmhutumit‘ﬂueiuligni:ﬁan:uwntoruhmgehnirmm:ﬂutiudthinituoml
lndnﬁmiuabﬂitybomiuormttomﬁuﬂwopﬁmtomuwonominm(eg,wuh‘ucﬁmofﬁguiﬁunthuehnldhpmmmnw:isnﬂ'mwmninﬁmm
the lsased esset)

TheCompmyMu&dﬂnmewﬂdenpﬁofﬂhn&mﬁrMofﬂmtmdmndﬁwMﬁMwaﬂlﬂemd(i.e.,lhreutoﬁveyem).m
Cunpanywinlﬂyexnciluiuq)ﬁmtamwhrlhenlumbmﬂ:mmﬂbealisuiﬁuntmglﬁwaﬁactonpmducﬁoniflnphcemgntumisnutmdﬂyuvﬁhbk.
The renewal periods for leases of plant and machinery with longer non-cancellable periods (i.e., 10 to 15 years) are nct included ey part of the lease term aa these are not
nlmuhlycuﬂninwbexmiled.Fmﬁmmqmmwswmdwmhﬁmopﬁmmhﬁhﬂednpmdmmmwm&wmmmmyMMm
be exercised

Property lease clamification — Company as lessor
TheCnmpmyhnmdmoommmdnlpmpmyleuuoniumvumunpwpuwmﬁo.mnCmpmyhsdmmimibudmmwﬂuﬁmof&mmmd
nonditimofﬂnmmnum,lushnﬁmlmemnnteonnihningnmljorputofﬂuecmmicﬁfeufﬂmmidmymﬂhpmmvduqfﬂumhﬁmmhm
pmnmtamtmomﬁngtosubcmﬁallylﬂnfhﬁirvdmofﬂnmmmi.lmmy.ﬂmtitreuinuubmnilllyluﬂwﬁuksmdmud:imidmmownmhipofﬂmu
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating loases

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumpticns conceming the fiture and other key sources of estimetion uncertainty at the repomng date, that have & siyuificant risk of causing & material adjustment to
the carrying amounis of aasets and lisbilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company bi " amismithion end estimates on parameters availgble
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about futire devel; ! however, :ﬁ‘n}_ changs due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when { ' t




() Dafined benefit piang

The cost of defined benefit pians (i.c. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations, An actuerial valustion involves making various assumptions which may differ
from_actual developments in the fishme. These include the determination of the digoount rute, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and ity long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly semsitive to changes in these assumptions. Al
mmnpﬁonummviewodltauhupurﬁngdm.Indatuminingﬂwappmpﬁnlndiuumtnte.mﬂnlgmmemaidm&einmmmnol'long-hu-mswmmtbondlwiﬂ:
extrapolated maturity carresponding to the expectad duration of the defined benefit obligation. The montality rate is based on publicly available mortslity tables for the apecifie
wunﬁnq.mmﬂuyhmuuuﬂpmliminmumbmdmu&pemdfummuiqnm.nuﬂmdmilsnhmﬂwutumpﬁnnsmed_imludingam:iﬁvityndysis

(b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

‘When the fair value of financial sassts end fingncial lisbilities record d in the balance sheet carmot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value i
mmuduﬁngwlmﬁonméhniquuheludina:hnnimmdmhmw(ncnmdalIhinpmwﬂlmmodulsuuhhnﬁ'umoburnhhmmmmpmibhbm
where this is not feasible, 8 degres of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Iudg:inmuimludueomidmﬁomof'ummwnhuﬁquidﬂyﬁsk.uditﬁakmd
wlnﬁlity.Chlngeai.nl.m.lmpﬁm:M&lﬂaﬁmwuldaﬁmthnupmdﬂirvaluuofﬁnmoidimhummﬂ.TheCmupmyuuNetnutvduefnrvﬂunﬁmnﬁnvmmt
i mutual fund.

{c) Impairment of Financial assets .

The impeirment provisions of financial assets arc based on aegumptions about risk of defsult and expected loss rates. the Compeny uses judgement in making these
amnplionumdselnnﬁns‘lheinpmuﬂwmmwcﬂﬁmhﬂmmmmhm,mmmemﬁﬁmumunmmmuhm
of each reporting period.

(d) Impairment of non-Finanoial aseets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication thet an asset may be impaired. I any indication exists, or when ennual impairment testing for an
llluti:nqnind,thnCmmmmmmMmmmkdemMMﬁimkmnofdilpoulmdh
value fn usa lt:'ldemimdfbrlnindividu:lum.un]alsthnmﬂdoummmwhhﬂmﬂmmhgdyhdepmdntd‘ﬂmuﬁmnﬂmmwcmd
assett. Where the camrying emount of an asset or CGL excseds its recovereble amount, the asset is considered impdired and is written down to its recoversble amount. Th
asserying valun in use, the estimated future cash flows wre discounted to their present valus using a pre-tex discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
vu]wofmmsylndﬂnri:hlpeciﬁnmﬂmnut.hdmininnﬁivnluulnuomnfdismemmtmmmacﬁnunratlkmilmmm.[fmmhmwiomm
be identified, an appropriate valuation mixdel is used. These caloulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fivir value indivybirs-==—=
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Maz Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements
3 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

OMce equipment Furniture and fxture Mator vehicles * Computers and duta Total
processing unlts
At cost — — — - =
As at March 31, 2620 16 _bs3 81.40 30.54 11513 °
Additions oM 2949 6.24 J5.82
Draposals — 15.24 045 15.69
As at March 31, 2021 o 2.26 1.02 95.65 3633 133.26
Additions L 19.48 55.10
Disposals - o 2267 22.67
An at March 31, 2022 2.26 1.02 = 131.26 B.4 167.469
Depreciation o o o -
As at March 31, 2020 1.20 0.19 18.08 22.32 41.80
Additiors 0.43 0.09 1026 4.49 1527
Disposals - T 448 0.40 435
As at March 31, 2021 1.63 0.28 23.90 26.41 5222
Additions 0.31 1 1397 1.7 22,09
Duaposaly = — - 21.53 21.53
Asal March 31, 2022 1.94 0,38 37.87 1239 S2.78
Net earrying amount -
As at March 31, 2022 032 0.64 93.39 20.55 114.91
Aa st Mareh 31, 202¢ = 0.63 074 7076 9.92 83.08
- Motor vehicle amounting to R8.75.93 lacs (March 31,202 1 Ho 22 41 id attiimet b hiarse st ext o Mt stk 17 ._ o
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Mnzx Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financinl statements

1. Investmeul property ' Ra In Laes
Investinent Property Investment Property under
= _oqbaelymien)
At cost
Az at March 31, 2020 - 5,801.54
Adgitions aay wh 1,691.41
Disposals 7 494,95
As at March 3, 2021 7.494.95 -
Additions 124.15
Disponaly/capitalised during the year 3
A3 at March 31, 2022 7.619.10 -
Deprecintion
As at March 3¢, 2020 a
Additions 48.01 -
Disposals
An at March 31, 2021. 4811 -
Additions T H
Disposls . -
As at March 31, 2022 167 &4 -
Net enrrying amouni
A3 al March 31, 2022 7451.46 -
Ag at Marceh 31, 2021 7.146.94 -
Notes:
(i) Contractual obiligntions
Refer folo 26 for disch r for the nequisition of im csiment propertics
(ii) Capitalised borrowing cant
During tho yeor company hes capitalised Ra.Nil {Provious Year - 242, |6 Lacs) undor investment property undsr CWIP
(i) Amount recopnised in profit and loas for Investment properties LT ¥
Rantal incomo 35383
Less: Diroct oporcting nxponses penorating rental ineoms 328.24
Profit from lossing of inveslmont propertlos 25.59
Loas: doprocimion cxponse 123,70
Profit from lansing of i prop ofler dep {98.12)
(Iv] Fair value
Fair value ki hy and valuati hnig
The fair + alug of invesiment property has been d d by 1he ' Hy. having appropriaie racognisod professional qualification and recent experiencs in the location and calogory of the property

baing valuod, The i value hes beon arrived using discounted cash Now projections besed on rolinble saumates of Tuture cavh Nowt considonny growth in rontol of 14% on ¢very 3 years. vacaney rate of 3%

and discouni ratc of |2 00%,
Reconciliation of falr value:

Oponing balunca as nt 1 April 202|
Incresse &f Fair value

Decling in M value

Closing balanco ox &1 31 March 2022
Valustion wodels applied for valuation:
Discouriod cash Now mothed - not presem valus is d

d cagh flows di d ol on inic rale

d based on p

i Ldgss

Fes. 30U 1 10000 Jeca



Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
4. intangible assets
(Rs in Lacs)

Comjuter software Total

At cost
As at March 31, 2020 17.43 17.43
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2021 17.43 17.43
Additions 0.42 0.42
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2022 17.85 17.85
Amortization -
As at March 31, 2020 8.91 8.91
Additions 2,74 2.74
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2021 11.65 11.65
Additions 2.78 2.75
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2022 14.40 14.40
Net carrying amount -
As at March 31, 2022 3.45 ) 3.45
As at March 31, 2021 5.78 5.78

. i

-




Maz Esiates Limited
Notes forming part &f the fimancial statementy
8. Non Current financlal navels

lovesrmant iRs. in Lacsl
Afmt Al
— March 31 2022 March 31, 202)

I in equity i {vnlue ot cost)

Investments in subsldiaries

Uncquoted equity shares

{n) Max Towers Pyt Ltd (formerly known ag Wise Zone Builders Pvt, Ltd)

6,50,60.000 Equity shares of Ry. 10 oach fully pard up (March 31, 2021 - 6,50.60 4410 Equity Sharus) A e 6,506.00
) Max Square Lad {formerly kaown aa Northern Propmort Solutioas Limited)

3.57.10,6M) Equity sharea of Ra 16) sach Fully paid up (March 31. 2021 - 3.57. 1 0.4k Equity sharcs) 35700 3.571.00
(c) Pearmax Carporation Limited .

{4.71,22,747 Equiry sharcs of Ry. 10 cach fully paid up (Mareh 38, 2021 - 4,71_22.747 Equity sharas) B.07TA05 073,05
< ive Convertible Praf Shares

{a) Pharmax Corporation Limited

{3.00,000 £0% Cumulative Convortible Preforence shares of Re. 100 onch fully paid up (March 31, 2021 - 3,00,000) 1,900,060 L i

Unguoted Campulsory Coavertible Det .
(a) Max Towers Pvt Ltd (formerly knowa as Wise Zone Bullders P, Litd)

26020 Debenturcs of R, 1.0¢.(0K) cach fully paid up {March 31, 2021 - 26020 Debonturcs) 26.020.00 26,020
(1) Max Square Lid {formerly Knowa a1 Northern Propmart Sclutions Limited)

3.57.10.000 Dobonturea of Ra. [0 ench fully paid up {March 31. 2021 - 3,57.10.000 Debonturcs) 35700 357100
Equity companent of guarantee given for loan

{a) Max Towsrs Pyt Ltd (formerly known ns Wise Zone Builders Py, Lad) 47,78 41,78
{b) Max Square Lid {formerly krown a3 Northam Propmart Solutions Limited) 5708 18,77

Equity portion of interesl free laon (net of deferred tax)
Pharmax Corporation Limund

49"k ki 49.707.57
e

T ST St WO O TRl R T 44,745,068 49.707.57
Apgrpil o il 3 e 49.746.68 49, 707.57
5. Non Current financlal sesets
Other financial nasets
Socunty deponita 2% a0 29490
Inturuat acctued on CCDrs 1.328.07 4529
1.150.97 TH, |9
6 Wi i sl dbails
Iy proyrtivies & 3286 &1.8
W Ralbicnn? (1) e 1] 350.14 209.63
LR*T=5TH VTIRTTTSSCN 550.55
sass FRTR
6.0 Deferred tax asets
Tox impect of oquity portion of interost froo [oan %6.51
86.51

———




Max Estates Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

- __IRs. in Lacs)
As at As at

March 31, 2022 — March 31, 2021

7. Inventories

Construction Materials 19.66 40.73
Finished Goods 1,138.84 2,835.54
Work-in-process 186,75 341.00
1.345.258 3.217.27




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

iRa. in Lucs)

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31. 2021

8. Current financial aszets

(i) Trade reccivablea
Unsecured :-
Unsseured, considered good * 162.95 50.64
162.95 50.64
* includes Rs. 150,14 lacs (Previous year Rs, 18,79 Jacs) due from related parties
Apeing of trade recelvable aa on 313t March 2022 Outatandlng for following jierfods from due date of jav ment
‘Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good Leas than 6 6 montha-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More Total
months then 3
A
As on March 31_2022 146,63 3,30 13.02 - - 162.95
As on March 31_2021 37.87 12.77 - - - 50.64
(i) Cash end cash equivalents
Balances with banka:
On cument accounts 55.16 286,59
Coshinhand - 0.89 0.78
56.05 287.77
(ili) Bank balances other thun (ii) above
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 154388 5291.60
33543.88 5.291.60
{iv) Loama
Loans to related parties (refer note 33h) 1.089.57 1233.92
3.089.57 1,233.92
{¥) Other financial assets
Rent receivable (Equalisation) 205.09 28.68
Interest acorued on depaosits 128.86 77.50
Security Deposit 2.03 2.03
335.98 108.21
9. Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
Advances :-
- from related party 3637 104.71
- frotn others 14,31 5.7
Deforred guarantes foe 4,12 4.12
Propaid expensos 96.89 94,82
Balance with statutory authorities 183.20 246.49
e 333.69 45590

PR LT Y
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Max Estater Limited
Notes forming part of the financii

tatements
10.  Share capital and other equity

(it  Equity share capital
(P in Laesi

At Asat
March 31,3022 March 31, 221

a) Authorized
7.50.00.000 equity sheros of Re. 104- gach (March 31. 2021 - ZRULDO.OKE cquity sharss of Re. 14/ cnch) TX00.00 7.300.00

2.800.00 1,800.00
1ssued, subscribed and lully paid-up

7,79.1 0000 oquity ahores of Ra, | /- cack ully paid up (Manch 31, 2021 - 7,79, 16,0) equity shares of Ru. 11)/- cach} ] pR A L]
Tatal lssuad, subacribed and fully paid-up share caplial Tl == |§.—

4) Reconciliation of the chares putstanding at the beglnning and ¢ the ead of the reporting year

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Egisiy dhdery No.of shaves [0 [ lnxsi No. of shares ARs. In lssni
Al the boginging of tha ynar 7.79,10,000 1.791.00 7,79.10.000 7,791.00
Add: Sharcs insuod during Lhe vear = . .
Outstanding at the end of the yenr R AL ERITH] = TH fitini | NLE)

€) Terms and rights attached to equity shares .
The Company' has only one elass of equity sharcs having s par valuc of Ra. |0 per share. Ench holdar of equity sharcs 18 ontitled 10 enz vole por ghare. The dividond if any, proposad by Lhe Board of Directars 18

subjoel (o the approvel of the shareholdors un th onswing Annual Ocncral Mecling
In the ovent of liguidation of the Compony:, the hotdors of oquity shores will be entitled 1o rocoive remaining cascln of tho Campam . afler distribution of all preferentin ‘The dintribution will b in

preportion 10 1he rumber of oquity shares hald by the shoaroholdors.

d) Details of shareholdery holding msre than 5% shares in the Comgan; B
Name of the Shareholder o March 31_ziizr o Maich 312021
No, of shares % held No. of shares % bald
Equity sharea of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Max Vonturea & Induieics Limited 7.70.00,994 1| 7.70.00.094 s
&) Detalls of shavry helfl by hebding iy —
Name of the Shareholder B March 312022 March 31. 2021
No. of shares . % held No. of shares % held
Equity sharea of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
- -~ 7,79.00,004 ajipgEiph,

Max Vortures & Induntrics Limited

1 Aggregate number af Shares issued for conslderation other than cash during the period of five years immediaiely preceding the reporting date - NIL

B Sargfisiding of Fromefirs

Shares held by preminris at the end of the ywur
As at Promoter Name No. Of shares | % of total %% Chonge during the yoar
Mareh 31 2022 Max Vomuros & Induntrics Limited TR Nil
- M Vi % Industrics Limited I Nil




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(i) Other equity

e &
S5 T
22U

f'liha

AN

A = b

i |It.'--_‘ II
'.,__,\\_//_-..nl,.
N &

™

(Rs, in Lacs)
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) {refer note a below) 57.164.00 57.164.00
Other equity {refer note b below) 223.07 96.49
Retained earings (refer note ¢ below) 14,586.66) (5,117.08)
§IAN041 52,1434
Notes:
a) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD)
At the beginning of the vear 57,164.00 36,964.00
Add: additions during the year - 20.200.00
At the end of the year 57,164.00 57,164.00
b) Other equity
At the beginning of the year 96.49 28.74
Add: additions on account equity created on guarantee fees & ESOP 40.07 67.75
Add: Tax impact on equity portion of interest free loan 86.51 -
At the end of the year 223.07 96.49
¢) Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year (5.117.05) (3,891.55)
"Profit/{Loss) for the year 526.46 (1.215.71)
Re-measurement of post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) (item oF OCI) 393 19.79}
At the end of the year (4.586.66) (5,117.08)



Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements

11. Borrowings
i Rs. in Lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current borrowings
Term loans (secured)
From banks 3,793.64 3,859.23
Vehicle loans from Bank (secured) 31.34 28.45
3,824.98 3,887.68
Less: Amount disclosed under "other current financial
liabilities" |refer note 14(i)) 163.10 82,60
3,661.88 3,805.08

Aggregate Secured loans 3,824.98 3,887.68
Aggregate Unsecured loans .

Vehicle foan :-
Vehicle loans amounting to Rs. 31.34 Lakhs (March 31,2021 - Rs. 28.45 Lacs) are secured by way of hypothecation of
respective vehicles. The loans are repayable in 1-3 years. Rate of interest is 7.60%, 7.65%. 7.80% 8.20%and 9.00%

Term Lozn from Banks :-

The Compeny has taken secured term loan facility for 4,500 Lakhs loan from [CIC| Bank Limited. Out of this
facilitv the company has drawn 3,905 lakhs till March 31. 2022. The Facilitv. all interest thereon. costs. charges,
expenses and all other monies in respect thereof shall be secured by:

Exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage over the Project being developed by the Borrower on the Property.;
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Scheduled Receivables of the Projectand all insurance proceeds,
both present and future

Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Escrow Accounts of the Project and the DSR Account and all
monies cred- ited/deposited therein (in whatever form the same may be), and all investments in respect thereof (in
whatever form the same may be)

The security as required by Lender shall be created in favour of Lender, in a form and manner satisfactory to
Lender.

Post creation of security, the Project shall provide a security cover of 1.50 times during the entire tenure of the
Facility on the outstanding loan amount of Facility

Repayment terms:-

The repayment of principal amount of facility need to be made in 108 instalments commencing from 1 month from
the first drawdown date




Max Estates Limited
Notey forming part of the financial statements

| Rs. in Lacs!
Asat Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
12. Other non current financial liability
Security Deposit received 762.02 374,41
Deferred Finance Income (Security deposit) 68,00 522
830.02 379.63
13. Long term provision
Provision for emplbyee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 28) 56.82 42,55
56.82 e
14, Current financlal Habilities
(1) Borrowinga
Loan from related party ( Unsecured ) * 2,667.00 3,260.00
Current maturity of long term borrowings (refer notz 11) 163,10 82.60
2.830.10 3.142.60
* interest bearing loan & 9.25%, repayable on demand
{liy Trade payablea
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises end smell cnterprises® 4.63 159.79
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smal! enterprises
<Payable to related parties
- Others 307,96 552.55
312.59 T12.34

18

Trade Payables ageiny: schedule as on 31st March 2022

QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars <1yuar 1-2years 2-3 years

ii1 MSME 4.63

Liiy Others 296.09 11.87 -
iiii) Diszuted dues-MSME -

iiv}) Disjuted dues -others

Trade Parables pzeing schedule as on 313t March 2021

Qutstanding for followini periods from due date of payment

Particulars <1 yuar 1-2ymars 2-3 yaurs

1il MSME 159.7¢ - -
|1fis Others 548.03 4.52

{iii: Disjuted dues-MSME -

|iv: Disiuted dues -others

* Detalls of duea to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

As per the Act, the Company is required to identify the Micro and small suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the
terms agreed with such suppliers. Based on the information available with the Company, none of the creditors have confirmed the applicability of act on them.
Hence, the lisbility of the interest and disctosure &re not required to be disclosed in the financial statements,

(lif) Dther curreat financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposits

Deferred Guarantee Income

Deterred Finance Income {Security deposit}

Other current linbillties
Statutory dues
Advance from Customers

. Short term provision

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for leave encashment

Provision for gratuity {refer note 28)
=

13.34 i7.19
74.06 52.11
39.86 17.99
172 2.72
129.98 90.01
89.48 69.80
254,08 419.01
343,56 488.81
81.95 78.56
0.80 0.54
82.75 79.10




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

17. Reveoue from operations
(Rs. in Lacs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations 3,215.58 1,697.87
Revenue from Project Management Consultancy/CAM 685.64 174.32
Total revenue from operationy 3.901.22 187219
18.  Other Income
Interest Received 941.41 1,049.80
Profit on sale of mutual fund - 0.20
Guarantee Fee Income 14.72 0.66
Liability no longer required written back 30.57 346
Other non-operating income 14.69 11.41
Miscellaneous Income 45.10 5.46
1.046.49 1.070.99
18.1.  Cost of material consumed, construction & ather reiated project cost
[nventories at beginning of year 40.73 9.90
Add: Purchases - -
Construction Materials - 28.14
Civil Construction Work (21.07 2.70
19.66 40.73
Less: inventory at the end of year 19.66 40.73
Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost
18.2. (Incrense)/ decrease in work-in-progress
[oventories at end of year
Finished Goods 1,138.84 2,835.54
Work-in-process 186.75 341.00
) 1,325,59 3.176.54
Inventories at beginning of the year
Finished Goods 2,835.54 4,393.50
Work-in-pracess 341.00 341.00
3.176.54 4.734.50
(Increase)/ decrease in work-in-progress 1.850.95 1.557.96




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

1%. Employee benefits expense
{Rs. In Lacs}
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 497,12 439.69
Contribution to provident and other funds 3391 18.87
Employee stock option scheme (refer note 30) 39.57 25.57
Gratuity expense (refer note 28) * 20.48 13.56
StafT welfare expenses . 7.39 4.06
598.47 501.75
* Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs.|.73 lacs) capitalised as part of investment property
20.  Finance costs
Interest on borrowings 682.60 1,098.92
Bank charges 43.27 57.64
725.87 1,156.56
21.  Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on Investment property & property, plant and 141.72 63.28
equipment (refer note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 4) 2,75 2.73
144.47 66.01
22.  Other expense
Rent 0.05 339
Insurance 2045 17.78
Rates and taxes 79.45 54.48
Repairs and maintenance:

Others 158.84 37.97
Printing and stationery 0.51 0.53
Travelling and conveyance 18.57 12,15
Communication 2,56 270
Legal and professional * 422.63 643.46
Net loss on sale/disposal of fixed assets 0.42 3.83.
Membership & Subscription 2452 46.92
Marketing Expenses 252.50 43.65
Business Promotion J6.82 4.52
Facility Management Charges 64.94 :
Miscellaneous expenses 18.96 5.16

1,101.22 876.54
* Payment to auditor (included in iegal and professionai fee)
As auditor:
Audit fee 0.75 0.75
Other services (Limited review & certification fees) 0.50 0.51
1.25 1.26

-
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Max Eatates Limlted
Notes forming part of the finanelsl statements

23

24

OQther comprehensive income

— | Ra. in Lacs!
For the year ended March 3!, For the year ended March
2022 31,2021
Re-measuroment logses on defined benefit [-!|ll'll 303 (9.79)
income tax effect i - =z .
B 303 o 19,71
Earning Per Share
——= For the year ended March 31, For the year ended March
2022 31, 2021
Basic EPS
Profit/{Loss) after tax (Rs, in Lacs) 526.46 {1.215.70)
Less: dividends on convertible preference shares & tax therenn - !
Net profit/(toss) for caleulation of basic EPS 526.46 (1.215.71)
Weighted average number of equity sheres outstanding during the year {Nos.} 779,10 000 779.10 906
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) - 0.67 [TET}
Dllutive EPS
Profit/{Loss) after tax {Rs. in Lacs) 526.46 (1,215.71)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for dilutive 44,75,50,000 44,75,50,000
eamings per shace (Nos) -
Diluted eamings per share (Rs.) 0,12 10,27}




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

25

Income Tax

The major components of incomne tex cxpense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 :

Statement of profit 2nd loss :

Profit and leas section

(M. In Lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current income tax :

Current tax

Income tax for earlier years

Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax relates to the following:

0.07

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

" For the year ended

March 31, 2021

Deferred tax linbilities

Differences in depreciation in block of fixed assets as per tax books and
financial books

Difference in book base and tax base in investments

Others

Gross deferred tax liabilities ()

Deferred tax assets

Effect of expenditure debited to the statement of Profit and Loss in the
current period/earlier periods but allowed for tax purposes in following
periods

Others

Gross deferved tax assets (b)

Mnat Credit (c)

Deferred tax liabilitles/(assets) (net)

Reflected In the balance sheet as follows:

Reconciliation of deferred tax Liabiilties {net):

86.51
86.51

(86.51)

[Hs. in Lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2022  March 31,2021

Opening balance

Tax expense/( incoms) during the period recognised in profit or loss
Tax expense/( income) during the period recognised in OCl
Closing balance

86.51
86.51

0.07

0.07

The 1.:|L11J,-a.ra-gl.].a.-u tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
ln liaby! mcx d the deferred tax nssets and deferred tax linbilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

i -

.“ d
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Motes forming part of the financial statements
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Commitments and contingencles
Capital commitments

i Rs. In lacs|
| As at March 31, |As at March 31, 2021
2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and nol accounted for 34,94 6.82
Less: Capital Advances L 0.93
Net Commitment 5.84 5.84
Contin=ent Habllities 'Rs, In lacs|
' As at March 31, |Aslt March 31, 2021
2022 1
Bank Guarantee s.ouo.oor 5,000.00
|Uttarakhand Vat 2124




Max Eseates Limired
Notes forming part of the financial statements

27 Other notes 10 accounts

Investmient in subaldinries

(a) These financial are financial prepared in
_ib| The L =mgam s in ysimints in ore a1 under:

with Ind AS-27" Separsie Financial Statemoris”

Name of the Subsidinry Country of incorporntion  Portion of pwiership  Portlon of hip ured to for
Intereal Re a1 March Interesi ma At the investmant
31,2022 Marth 3}, 2021
Max Towars Pyt Lid {formerly known as Wise Zone Bullders Pa4,Lid.) India L 1414, Al deemned cost
Max Squere Lid {formarly known as Northem Propmeri Solulions Lid) India e S51% Al deiemad conl
Pharmax Corporation Lid India L B5% Al deamed cost




Max Estates Limitec

Notes forming pari of the financial staicmenty
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28.01

Gratuify

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under Gratuity Plan, every employes who has completed five years or mere of service wets @ gratuity on departure gt 15
daya of last drawn salary for each completed yoar of service.

b)

&)

d)

e)

]

h}

[Rs. 1n incs)
Asrat Azat
Reconcllintion of opening and closing balances of defined beneflt obligatlon March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit cbligation at the beginnmg of the year 4309 38.39
Intereat expense 252 2.61
Current service cost 17.56 12,72
Benefit paid ' (2.02) {20.34)
Acquisition adjustment (0.08)
Remeasurament of (Gain)/loss in other comprehensive income
Actuariat changes ariging from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions .
Actuarial ohanges arising from changes in experiance adjustments 13.93) 9.79
Defined benefit obligation at year end 57.62 43,09
R lliation of opening and closing bal of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginting of the year
Expeoted return on plan assets -
Employer contribution
Remeasurement of (Gain)loss in other comprohensive income -
Fair value of plan assets at year end = =
Net defined benefit asset/ {(llablity) recognized in the balance sheet
Fair valug of plan asseis
Present value of defined benefit abligation g o) 43,09
A i recognized In bal shest- asset / {linbility) 57.62 43.09
Net deflined benefit ox; (recognized in the of profiL and loss for the yenr )
Current service cost 17.56 1272
Past service cost
Interest cost on berefit obligation 292 261
Expeacted return on plan assets
Net deflned benefli exp deblted to stat of pralit and loas 20.48 1533
Remersurment (galn)/losa recognlsed in other comprehensive Income
Actuarial changea arising from ch in finenciel pti
Actuarial changes ansiny from changes in experience adjustments 13.93| 2.79
Recognlsed In other comprehensive income 14,93, 9.79
Broad categorles ol plan assets n1 a percentage of totnl asseta
Insurer managed funds = [
Principal assumptions used in determining defined beneft obligation
Assumption particulars for the year ended March for the year anded March 31, 2021
31, 2022
Discount rate =1 6.79%
Salary excalgtion rate [LTEE T 10.00%
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 12-14) [CRRTE 100.00%
for the year anded March for the year ended March 31, 2021
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant ussumptions is as below: 31, 2022
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year
Mosmmm mnn
Thipmmus o & Wity 4.1 (2.96)
Ll mihid g a0 2l 454 3.28
Salies ikl e
v Iy 1 AP 4.40 LA1)
| Sertine Im 1331 ¥ 4.03) (2.89)
Aftrition rete
Incrense by 0.50%
Dacrease by 0.50%

The average duration of the definad benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 15.97 years (March 3 [, 2021 : 15.64 years)

The estimatea of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are afler taking into account inflation, seniovity, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market, The above information is as cartified by the Actuary.

Discount rete is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Govermment securitics as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The sensitivity analysis above heve been dstermined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit cbligation as a result of reascnable
changes it key assumptions occuirring at the end of the reporting year.

Leave Encashment (unlinded)
The Cempany recogmises the leave encashment axpenaes in the Statemen! of Profil & Loss based on actuarial valuation.

The expeuses recognised in the Statemeni of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liability at the beginning and at the end of the
ear:

iRo. in lacsy
Particulars . for the year ended March  for the year ended March 31, 2021
31, 2022
Liability at the beginning of the year _——— 78.57 73.26
Benefits paid during the year ;;f o es,’ﬁ? . (3.53) (21.61)
Pravided during the year B 692 2692
81.96 78.57

Linbllity at the end of the
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Segment reporting
The Cotipany is 2 one segment company in the business of real estates development. All its operations are located in Indis , accordingly, the Company views these
activities a8 one business segment, thers are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on *Segment Reporting’.

Employee Stock Option Pian

Employee Stock Option Plan — 2016 (“the 2016 Plan*):

The Holding Company, Max Venturea and Industries Limited has constituted an Employee Stock Option Plan - 2016 which have been approved by the Board in the
meeting held on 9th August 2016 and by shareholders of Max Ventures and Industries Limited in its annual general meeting held on September 27, 2016,

The details of activicy under the scheme are summarizad below:

Particulary March 31, 2022 __Mnrch 31, 2021

Number i Welghird Averagi|  Number of optiosa] Weighted Averape

iigrthoms axerclse price (M, exercise price {Hs.)

Outstanding at the start of the year 2,61,190 12.90 - -
Options granted during the year 82,667 3227 2,61,190 12.90
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year 65,293 12.90 - .
Outstanding at the end 2,73.554‘ 18.65 2,61,150 12.90
Exercisable at the end - | 4 :

For options exercised during the year, the weighted average share price at the exercise date was Rs.12.90 per share,

The waiphted svempn ronwining eotiiractual life for the stock aplivme cutstanifing ag st March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:

|Date of grant March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Number o Wreighted svernze|  Number of options| Wiighied ayerupe
options| remainiug life in years remaining life in years
04-06-2020 {Grant Tryie 1} 2.61.190 2.68 2,61.190 3.68
02-07-2021 iGrant ['ype I1) 82,667 3.68 -

During the year ended March 31, 2022 65293 mumber (Previous year Nil) of stock options were excreised by the aforesaid option holders.

The2015Pllngmunoptwnmth:empluyumymhmtholhunlmdemmhmemﬂondemmmemma(NRC)ofMuthml
and Industries Limited subject to mininmm par value of shares (Ra. 10/-). TheConpuwhlvﬂwdEnployeeskapﬂonmuhndmguutymmdmmn{nuﬂ

“mwm“mmmm“wm““”“ﬂjgesmﬁ
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3 Financinl Instruments

The comparison of carrying value and fiir value of Anancial instruments by categories that are not measured at falr value are as follows:

i Rs. In Laen;
Category © iy ing Value iyl it
“iarch 31 2022 I March Ji, 2021 M h 312022 | Muiih 31 2021
1) Finnnclal asset at amortized cost
Currént and Non Current
Loans 444754 1,949.11 4.447.54 1,949.11
Other financial asscts 335.98 108.21 13598 108.21
Trade receivables 162.95 50.64 162.95 50.64
Cash and cash equivalents 3,509.64 5,570.37 3,599 94 557937
Investinents 50,003 88 49.707.57 50,003.88 49,707 57
2} Finaneial liabilities at amurtized-cost
Non Current
Borrowings 1,651.88 3,805.08 L | 5K 1,805.08
Current
Borrowings 2,830.10 3.342.60 2,830 |10 334260
Other financial linbilities 129,98 20.01 129.98 50,01
Trado payniles 4 312.59 712.34 31259 71234

The Cormpany nssetsed that trade receivables, cash and cash equlvalents, other bank balances, loans and advances (o relnted parties, interast receivable, trade payables, capital
ereditors nre considered 10 be the same as their fair values, due to their short tarm rature,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current ion b willing parties, other than
in a forzed or liquidation sale. The fallowing methods and nssumptlons were used to estimate the fair values: .

Long-term Axad-rate and variable-rate receivablesborrowinus are evaluated by the Company based on p s such as interest rates, specific country risk Fstors, individual
creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the fnanced project. Based on this evalustion. allowances are taken into acoount for the expeoted pradit losses of
these receivables.

The thir value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other Anancial liabilities as well as other noncurrent financial linbilities are estimated by discounting Riture cash Aows
using rates currently availsbla for debt on similar tarms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The valuation requires management to use observable and unobservable inputs in the
model, of which the significant ghsarvable and unobservable inputs are disclosed in the table below. Mansgement regularly Assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for
those significant observable and unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value,

The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and other non-current financial lisbilities are determined by using DCF mathod using discount rate that reflects the
issuer's borrowing, rate aa at the end of the reporting period.

Frir vnlue hierarchy

il s Tnniiig % B Gtlhils ol Vimgitithad swmdboitiimenive s wilgiolabin 1gs B

auem T e
D 2l T wmarmh i uones g e Dbl in g Tl Wisea o it ) 8000wl 00062 b o] D o it 0F bbbt vt gt b Aincct b b lilieetl
L 1 e i UL e apppuiide Dhi Dioe s shuniillini) gllisy oo e il 0 i Ui ge o Salabil s st el 1)

{i} Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hicrarchy for financiel asseis a8 on Mearch 31, 2022

— iR in Lacaj
Particulnry Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2022 .
Level | Level 2 Leveld
Current
Loans 4447 54 - 4.447.54
Other financial assels 31598 - 335.98
Trade receivables 162.95 162.95
Cash and cash equivale: 3,599.94 . 3,500.04
Investments 50003.88 - e 5003.88
{ii) Quamtitative dieclosure of fair value measurement hiararchy for financial assets as on March 3 1, 2021 .
{Ha bn | sy
Particulars Canrying value Fair value '
March M, 2021
Level 1 Lovel2 Level 3
Loans 1,949.11 - 1,949.11 .
Other financial assets 108.21 - - 108.21
Trade receivables 50,64 - 50.64
St b g el 5576937 3,579.37
_49 707.57 o = 49 707 57
(iii) Quantitntive disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial linbilities a5 on March 31, 2022
=, EEN S o |Ra.inLacs,
Particulars Carrying value Falr value
Mareh 31, 2022 o -
Level 1 Levii 2 Level 3
Non Current
Bormowings 3.661.88 1,661,88 =
Currom
Borrowings 2,830.10 E - 2,830,190
Othar financinl liabilitie: 129.98 - - 129.98
__ Tradepayables 31259 . — 12,59
(iv) Quantitative disclosure of fair veiue measurement hisrarchy for finarciel liabilities as on March 11, 2031
| Rs. In Lacs|
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Mnreh 31, 2021
Level T Lavel 2 Level 3
Non Current
Borrowings 3,805.08 3,805.08
Current
Bormowings 3,342.60 .
Other financial Tabilitie: 90.01 : -

Trade pesiihles 71234 - -
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32 Financlal risk management ohjectives and pollclen

The Compamy's has inatljuied an avoral] risk Manogement pregramme which alea focuscs on the wnprodiciabiliy of Ananclal markels and secks 1o minimize potential adverse offocis ov the Companys financial
perfonitiance. The Corpornld Finance doparment, ovaluatos finangil risks In close ce-opecalion with U vanous makehsidors.

Tho Compaay is oxposed 10 capitnl risk. marke! rink, credit rink and liquldily risk. Thess ricks ar manqged pro-satively by the Senior Mangyement of the Company. dusly supporied by various Groups ond Commls,

ALCankl dek
‘Tho Company's objective when managing capilnl s to safeyuand its sbility 10 cottinuc og a oing concam in order 19 provide rums to iis shanchalders and benefits for pther slakoholders and to provids for sulMicient
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Related party disclosures

Names of related parties where control exists irrespecti

ve of whether transactlons have occurred or not

Holdink: comfiuny

IMax Ventures & Industries Limited

Fellow Subsidiary company Max Speciality Films Limited

Max | Limited

Max Asset Services Limited | formerly known as Max Learning Limited|
Subsidiary companies Max Towers Pvt Ltd (formerly known as Wise Zone Builders Private Limited)

Max Square Limited (formerly known 2s Northern Propmart Solutions Limited)
Pharmax Corjroration Limited

Names of other related jarties with whom transactions

have taken jilace during theear

Directors and Key management personnel

Mr. Kishansingh Ramsinghaney (Director)

Mr. Bishwajit Das { Director)

Mr. Rishi Raj (Director)

Mr. Nitin Kumar {Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Saket Gupta - Company Secretar |Upto Jan 31. 2022

Individual owning interest in voting power

Mr. Analjit Singh

Entities controlled or jointly controlled by person or
entities where person has significantly influence or
entities where person having control is Key Management
personnel

Max Healthcare Institute Limired
Trophy Estates Private Limited
Analjit Singh HUF

Antara Senior Living Limited

Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited
Pharmax Corporation Limited

Mex Life Insurance Company Limited
New Deihi House Services Lid.

Leeu ltaly SRL

The Unstuffy Hotel Co Limited

Max India Foundation

Max Leaming Ventures Limited
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33 {a) Dotalla of transsctions and balanco outstandings with related partios
S.No |Nature of trassaction Particalars For the yoar auded For the year ended
“iarch 31 2021 Mifaiik 11, 1911
1  |Relmbursemest of expenses (Recalved from)
Lhas | g P 0 sl TExpensei i1l 115 73
[ifax Toweers Put Lad 5liarsd famvicr) i 3 g
M &uasd Servies Linmail 2hH s
| Phareie Cierpirstiost Luminesd R 13.98
hiiy I!_-!n-lamlul 230 1 37
Hil 37236 255l
2 |Relmbwrsement of expenses (Paid to} Ban Vannere & hsinminas Limmail 763 137 !
Mhas Mot e leiiule Lt - 0.02
Hles |15l s Co, Lisited 243 141
il Tiiwnirs Ihivals § sl 2.06 -
Nerrs Lethi Bisain vl Lid: - Ihas
Ml Sabm TEapin o 103
8 Arien)i) Finigh - .
Mr. [listors 9% Lar
Mr il Eimse S | 94
[l 181y FLE
3 |Shared Services charges (puid to) [as Ventures & lituaurics L 39.51 Il 4
Turtul iy 41,04
4 |Shared Services charges (paid to) - Inventory/CWIP bdas Vemmes £ ey Limigd - 89.69
Futad - LE
5 Construction Services (remdered to} Phamax £ gy Lasii a2 = CEEE
Fral - 1320
6 |Seeurity Depoait recalved Pt T ioe | o =
. Total 40.00 -
7 |Performace Cuareates Recelved {Mun st Nirvees L 4314 18y
+ Taral 4 FURT] 332
8 |Reutpaid Mas Aaag) Sarvies Limsis] - EET]
Turak - 1.3}
9  |Rentreceived Min Anert Semvoos Liimmnl T3 8.16
Tutal Al a6
10 |Interest on Unsecured Loan (Fald to) Max Vemors & Indanree Lamnued 268.65 U iTE
Tetal 2685% LI
11 |Tsterest on Unsecured Lonn (Pald to) - Inventory/CWIP Slas Y iibites & Industries Limiisd - 87:9
Total - nrie
12 |Key managerial remsmeration - professional chagea Mr Kistigitmgli #ammupbsins - 1h4F |
Tucat - 1543
13 |Loantakes s Veatores & Fnseslies Litucsd [ Tini27
Py (gl |l - |t 11
| Tiikak AUk [ R
14 |Loan repaymest 190 Vistiiis & ledearas Lmiied LARLn 20736
Tuiad Libktin LATHE |
15  Compuisorily couvertible debentures lsnusd {fvlis Venirs & Indesiriss Limited - Hudrar i}
. Tulal - S
16 |[Compulsorily comvertible prefevesce shares subseribed Pharaas £ Lamiind - =T
| Lk - 1YM30
17  |Brokersge Income Truprh Estates fiva Lig sl -
Mr damit Tieyh LT -
LT Bl ML s -
Tatal 118.74 -
18 |Interest recd om Compulsory Canvertible Debenturea b 8 e i 714 i -
. Tiitad Tadn -
19 |Secondment fees Recelved 184 fuicdia okt - 348
i Lammims v emuis Ld - 255
Total - i
20  (Project Manspement Cousuitancy (rendersd to) s—f-'l.r.u: e T d
Tolad 1o C
21  |Guarantes Fees s Wititisien & Thidusires | il 412 2RIl
TPhartiias (e [ ail 210
Tetnd B23 2l
22  |Loan repayment received fites Fesams Pyt Ltd B nyry 925.96
Plrrrras o §amitd 3692 -
Tutal TR 93536
23 |Loan given Muox biquwy Lisniind . =
Vs € prpormone Limdted 2 o 1138.44
Max Tz Fos Ll 119202 2370 TK |
Tutal pEHH 31472
24 |Employees benefits llabllity tramaferred Al B Libidiosd - 24
[Total - 124
25  |Developer's Manager Fee lscome el qumy L | REL 1A
Total a9 170
26 |Guarantee Fees Income belan fpenr Lisslod 14 56 068
Pharssss (oo Laiing 0.16 -
Tabad 1a1t ], [
*The to thakey ] | does the for gratulty and lesve benefits, as they are determined on an l:hlllhlhlﬁlbrﬁlﬂlmpllwq?:-r‘ht.': oy ._; .
SN ,:
4 ~3,

O o

Ve
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33 (b}  Balances outstanding a yaar end

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

) The tranzactions with related parties are made on terma equivalent to those tha prevail in arm's length transactions

____'Rs Inlocs
S.No |Nature of transaction Particulnrs Anat As st
| March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
! |Interest Accrued on Unsecured Loan Max Ventures & Industries Limited - 0.44
Total - 044
2 Loan ontstanding Max Ventures & Industries Limited 2 §67.00 3.260.00
Total = 2.667.00 318000
1 | Compulsorily convertible debsatures Max Venturis & industries Limited 57 164.00 57 154,00
Total | 57.164.00 57.164.00
4 |Trade payables and Caplial Creditors Ma=x Ventures & Indus ries Limited | 9.28
Antara Purukul Senior Livanj Limited 0.36
Max Asact Services Limned 1.85 1.36
Antsra Purukul Senior Livinz Limited 13.90
New Delhi House Services Lid. 4,68
Mr. Rishiraj 0.55
Pharmax Cosymiration Limited 3.93
Max Syuare Limited 3.2 -
Total 9.42 31.77
5 Trade receivables Max Ventures & Industries Limited .
Max Towers Pvt Ltd 1219
Max Asset Services Limited — 31.43
The Linstuj?s Hotel Co Limited - 12.77
Max India Foundation — il 301
Max Learninz ventures Ltd ! 3.0l
| Max India Limited o
Teinh: Estates Private Limited £
Analiit sinsh HUF -
Mr. Analiit Sisilh . |
Total 50.23 |
6 |Other Receivables Max Towers Pv1 Lid B 2768
Max Life | Co. Limited 0.01 041
Pharmax Camp=ration Limited -
Max S:juare Limited 16,81 83.97
Tutnd 16.82 112.06
7 'Loan Recelvables Max Towers Pvt Lid 187.55 9549
Pharmax Corjioration Limned 3159.22 1 13844
. Total — 3 446,77 LI51.93
&8  invesiment outstanding ‘Max Towers Pvt Ltd 5 6506 00 | 6 506.00
Max 4ij uare Limited _ 1u ki | 3.571.00
Phiirirmx Corpwration Limited Boriag | £073.05
Total 16,150,058 1615008
9 | Compulaorily convertible debentures subscribed | Max Towers Pvt Lid - J1.026,00 21:020.00
‘Max Sjuare Limited 3.571.00 3.571.00 |
Toenl 2929100 29.951.00
10 |Gunarantee Fees Max Ventures & Industries Limited 28,48 32.60
Pharmax Corjieration Limited 28.48 32.60
Total L il 6521
11 |Compulserlly convertlble preference shares 1=y ey b s & SN T 3.9%00.00
| Ll 3.900.00 3 900,00
I3 |Security Deposil {Received) Max Assel Services Limited o = 55.66 1632
Total 59.68 16.31
14 [Interest Accrued on CCD Max Sijuare Limited | 132807 683.29
Totnl 1,528.07 685.29
15 Guaraniee Fees recelvable Mex Sepiinl Lt - 38.54 |8.77
Totnl _ 3854 18.77




34 Discloture roquired wnder Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013,
(a) Particulnrs of Loass given;

AR, bl Lacu)
8r. No Name of the Lognee Opening Balance ax Loan given . Loan repald  Cleding Balnace as s Purpose
on March 31, 20121 March 31, 2022
1 Max Towen Pyt Lid (formerly known as 9449 92.05 1B7.55 Operatioasl Cash Plow
Wist Zone Bullders Pyt. Lad) requirement
{b) Particulnrs of Investments made o oguity:
. fits. i Ly
&r. No Name of the Invester Opening Balance ax made  In Closlng Balance m om Purpas=
on Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2022
Investment In subgidiaries
1 Nx Towers vt Lid (Sbemecty kooom as Wis: oo §,506,00 - | 6,305.00 Strategio invosment
Butlders vt Lad)
2 M Square Limited (fismerty known as Northern 357100 - 3,571.00 Striegic nvestment
Propmart Sohtions Limited)
3 Pharmex Corporation Linited 6,073,085 - ' 6,073.05 Strwtoio hrvestment

{€) Particulary of Invesiments mude In debentures:

: b Las
8¢, No Name of the Investes Opexing Balance s Investment made  Imvesiment redeemed  Claabsg Balunce as on Purpose
o0 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022

Inveytment In subsidiaries

1 Mo Towars Pvt Lid (Formerly known a1 Wiss Zooe 26,010,00 26,020.00 Struseglc Investment
Bollders Pyt Lud ) : -
2 Moy Square Limited (formerly known ea Nacthern 357100 3,571.00 Strategic trveatment
Propmart Solutions Limited)
{d) Particalary of Invertisents made in Prefierence Shares
Ui L
Sr.No  Name of the Losncs Opeaing Balarke m Investmest made Lown repald  Closleg Balance a on Purpose
o March 31, 2021 Murch 31, 2022

3.500.00

- 3.500.00 Stralegic investment
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35 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company, share premium and all other equity reserves, The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is that it
maintain an efficient capital structure and maximize the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, The Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratic, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. ‘The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans end borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding

discontinued operations.
(s, In lacs)
Agat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings 6,491,98 7,147.68
Trade payables 312.59 712.34
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 3,599.94 5.579.37
Net Debt 3,204.63 2,280.65
Equity 60,591.41 59.934.44
Total Equity 60,591.41 59,934.44
Total Capital and net debt 63,796.04 62,215,09
Gearing ratio 5% 4%
Current Asset 8,867.37 10,645.31
Cuurent Liability 3,698.98 4.712.86
Curreat Ratio 2.40 2.26
Debt 6,491,98 7,147.68
Shareholder Equity 60,591.41 59,934.44
Debt-Equity Ratio 6.11 0.12
Eamnings aviainble for debt servies 1,396.81 6.93
Interest 725.88 1,156.56
Principal 34.31 3.52
0.01

Debt Services Coverage Ratio 1.84




Net Income (annual) 526.46 {1,215.71)

Shareholder Equity 60,591.41 59,934.44
Return on Equity Ratie 0.01 (0.02)
Cost of Goods sold/sale 1,850.95 1,557.96
Average inventory 1,987.19 1,417.77
Inventory Turnover Ratio 0.93 110
Net Credit Sale NA NA
Average Trade Receviable NA NA
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio NA NA

Net Credit Purchase NA NA
Average Trade payable NA NA
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio NA NA

Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation 3,901.22 1,872.15
Working Capital 5,168.39 5,932.46
Net Czpital Turnover Ratio 0.75 0.32
Net Profit 526.46 -1,215.64
Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation 3,901.22 1,872.1%
Net Profit Retio 0.13 (0.65)
Earning before interest and tax (EBIT) 1,252.34 -59.08
Capital Employed 65,140.13 64,161.70
Retura on Capital employed 1.92% -0.09%
Profit (PAT) 526.46 -1,215.71
Investment 65,140.13 64,161.70
Return on Investment 0.81% -L89%

36 1) Details of dues to micro and small eterprises as defined under the micro, small and medium enterprises development (msmed) act,
2006 ’
The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available ihformaﬁon, which hes been
relied upon by the auditors. According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006' are as follows:

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

8} The principal emount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier

= Principal amount 4,63 159.79
- Interest thereon Nil Nil
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, along Nil Nil
¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making Nil Nil
d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. Nil Nil
€) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil

The above information hes been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available
with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED.

ff} The Company does not have any_Heugmi property , where any prooeeding hes been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami 84
-' A
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37

38

The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

During the year the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (g)or entity (ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

During the year the Company have not received any find from any person (s)or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company, have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thet has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search ar survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(i} In previous year, the Company has acquired 1,84,600 10% Cumulative Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid
up at a premium of Rs.1200 - value Rs.23,99.80 lacs

The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on April 18, 2022, has approved the Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation and Arrangement emongst Max Ventures and Industries Limited and Max Estates Limited for amalgamation of Max
Voltures and Industries Limited ("MVIL or "Transferor Company") w1th Max Estates anted, wholly owned subs: inry of MVIL




Max Estates Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

39 Other disclosure requirement of Schedule 111 of Companies Act. 2013 are not appliachle to the company.
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